
CAMDEN COUNTY. NO RTH CAROLINA 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
Year Ended June 30. 2011 



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Sandy Duckwall. Chairman 

Garry W. Meiggs. Vice·Chairman 

Clayton Riggs 

P. Michael McLain 

Randy Krainiak 

OFFICIAI.5 

COllnty Manager 
Randell K Woodruff 

Clerk to the BOiI rd 
Ashley Honaker 

Finance Officer 
Clarann C. Mansfield 

Register of Peeds 
Peggy Kight 

Tax Administratpr 
Mary M. Rhodes 

ShWlI 
Tony E. Perry 

CQunty Attprney 
John Morrison 



FINANCIAL SECTION 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Basic Financial Statements: 

CAMDEN COUNTY 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

June 30, 2011 

Exhibit Government-Wide Financial Statements: 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 
7 

8 
9 

Statement of Net Assets 

Statement of Activit ies 

Fund Financial Statements: 

Balance Sheet·Governmental Funds 
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 

to the Statement of Net Assets 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Governmental funds 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Activities 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General, 
School Capital Reserve, & Special Capital Reserve 

Statement of Fund Net Assets - Proprietary Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in 

Fund Net Assets - Proprietary Fund 
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Fund 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Required Supplemental Financial Data: 

Other Postemployment Benefits - Schedule of Funding Progress 

Other Postemployment Benefits - Schedule of Employer Contributions 
Other Postemployment Benefits - Notes to the Required Schedules 



Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules: 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual -
Genera l Fund 
Special Capital Reserve Fund 
School Capital Reserve Fund 

Combining Balance Sheet for Non-Major Governmental Funds 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance for Non-Major Govemmental Funds 
Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual: 

Automation Enhancement and Preservation Fund 
Tourism Development Authority 
Dismal Swamp Visitor Center Fund 
CourthouseJShiloh Fire District 
South Mills Fire District 
Joyce Creek Drainage District 
Park Grant Fund 
Community Park Trust Fund 
Parks and Recreation Grant Fund 
Revaluation Fund 
Scattered Housing Capital Project Fund 

Enterprise Fund - Water District 
Water and Sewer Capital Projects Fund 
Water and Sewer Capital Projects Fund 
Water and Sewer Capital Projects Fund 

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and liabilities-Agency Funds 

Other Schedules: 

Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 

Analysis of Current Tax Levy County-Wide Levy 

Secondary Market Disclosures 

Schedule of Ten Largest Taxpayers 



Compliance Section: 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 

Compliance and Other matters Based on an Audit of 
Financial Statements performed in Accordance With 
Govemment Auditing Standards 

Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable to Each 
Major Federal Program and Internal Control Over Compliance 
in Accordance with OMB Circular A·133 and the State 
Single Audit Implementation Act 

Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable to Each 
Major State Program and Internal Control Over Compliance 
in Accordance with OMB Circular A·133 and the State 
Single Audit Implementation Act 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Corrective Action Plan 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

Schedule of Federal and State Financial Assistance 



FINANCIAL SECTION 



CERTIF'IED PUS L IC ACCOUNTANT S 
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 2 

Wilmington, North Carolina 28403 
Telephone (910) 799-4672 Fax (910) 395-4672 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Board of County Commissioners 
Camden County, North Carolina 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund infonnation of Camden County, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 3D, 
20 11 , which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of Camden County' s management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic fmancial statements based on our audit. We did 
not audit the financial statements of the Camden County ABC. Those financial statements were audited 
by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion on the fmancial 
statements, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Camden County ABC Board is based solely 
on the reports of the other auditors. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the Camden County ABC Board were not 
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the 
report of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmentaJ 
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major 
fund, and the aggregate rema ining fund infonnation of Camden County, North Carolina as of June 30, 
20 II , and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and 
the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, School Capital Reserve Fund, and Special 
Capital Reserve Fund for the year then ended in confonnity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 13, 
20 lion our consideration of Camden County's internal control over financial reporting and our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. The purpose of 
the report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit perfonned in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the 
results of our audit. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis and the Other Postemployment Benefits' Schedules of 
Funding Progress and Employer Contributions are not a required part of the basic financial statements 
but are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We, 
and the other auditors, have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required 
supplementary infonnation. However, we did not audit the infonnation and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was perfonned for the purpose of fonn ing an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Camden County, North Carolina. The 
combining and individual statements and schedules, budgetary schedules, and other schedules, as 
well as the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards as required by U.S. 
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits oj States, Local Governments, and Non­
Profit Organizations and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and 
individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedul~s, and other schedules, and the accompanying 
schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relat ion to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory 
infonnation has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and other auditors in the 
audit of basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A 
October J 3, 20 J J 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

As management of the County, we offer readers of Camden County's (the "County") financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the County for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. We encourage readers to read the infonnation presented here in 
conjunction with additional infonnation that we have furnished in the County' s financial 
statements, which follow this narrative. 

Financial Highlights 

• On the government-wide statements, the assets of the County' s governmental activities 
exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $23,852,040. The County's net 
assets are impacted considerably by qualified zone academy bonds (QZAB) that the 
County has issued on behalf of the Camden County Board of Education. The assets are 
not reflected in the County's fmancial statements, but the full amount of the long-term 
debt related to school construction of$ 16,137,691 is reflected in the County's financial 
statements. 

• As of the close of the fiscal year, the County's governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $11 ,617, 191 a decrease of $92,269 in comparison with the prior 
year. Capital expenditures negatively impacted this decrease. Approximately $1,927,330 
remains as unassigned fund balance (before the reserve required by State Statute). 

• At the end of the fiscal year, fund balance (before any reserves or designations) for the 
General Fund was $4,62 1,314, or 40% total General Fund expenditures for the current 
fiscal year. 

• The County' s total debt increased during the fiscal year by $726,824 from nonnal 
principal payments made timely and issuance of new debt. 

• Camden County's North Carolina Municipal Council rating was a 77 as of July 2008. 
• On July 6, 2010 the Camden County Board of Commissioners adopted the Camden 

County Capital Improvement Plan for fiscal years 2010/20 II tluu 2014/20 I 5. 
• In our review, we noted that the General Fund account decreased this year. The county 

was very frugal in spending, and there was an increase in health insurance for employees. 
We made a contribution to the Water and Sewer District for the shortfall of the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant in the amount of $165,335 and $5,5 19 in shortfall in 
Distribution. Also, from the General Fund matching funds were made to the North River 
Campground water lines in the amount of $89,950, $48,337 was spent for the upgrade of 
the track at the community park, $165,000 match for the Eco Park roads, $115,000 match 
for the South Mills Village Sewer project and a transfer of $3,000,000 to the Special 
Capital Reserve Fund. 

• New residential unit construction was down FY I1 to 7 from 38 units the year before. 
Total new construction increased by only $1,897, I 00 for the fiscal year. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the County's basic 
financial statements. The County's basic financial statements consist of 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The 
basic financial statements present two different views of the County through the use of 
government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial 



statements, this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance the reader's 
understanding of the financial condition of the County. 

Basic Financial Statements 

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the government-wide financial 
statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the County's financial 
status. 

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of 
the individual parts of the County's government. These statements provide more detail than the 
government-wide statements. There are four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: I) the 
governmental funds statements ; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; 3) the Proprietary 
statements; and 4) the agency fund statements. 

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial 
statements explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, 
supplemental information is provided to show details about the County's major and non-major 
governmental funds, all of which are added together in one column on the basic financial 
statements. Budgetary infonnation required by the General Statutes also can be found in this 
part of the statements. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad 
overview of the County' s finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector 
business. The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the 
County's fmancial status as a whole. 

The two government-wide statements report the County 's net assets and how they have 
changed. Net assets are the difference between the County's total assets and total liabilities. 
Measuring net assets is one way to gauge the County's financial condition. 

The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental activities ; 
2) business-type activities; and 3) component units. The governmental activities include most 
of the County' s basic services such as general administration, taxation and records, human 
services, education, and public safety. Property taxes, other taxes, and state and federal grant 
funds fmance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those where services are 
provided and customers are charged for those services. The final category is the component 
units. The Camden ABC Board is such a unit. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the County' s most significant 
activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like all 
other governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect 
compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as, the General 
Statutes or the County 's budget ordinance. All of the funds of the County can be divided into 
two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 



Governmental Funds Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the County's 
basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can 
readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be 
available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting 
method called modified accrual accounting which provides a current financial resources focus. 
As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term 
view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to 
finance the County 's programs. The relationship between government activities (reported in 
the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is 
described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements. 

The County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. 
The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the 
County, the management of the County, and the decisions of the Board about which services to 
provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the COWlty to obtain funds from identified 
sources to finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the 
General Fund demonstrates how well the County complied with the budget ordinance and 
whether or not the County succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was 
adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is 
presented using the same format, language, and classifications as the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance. The statement shows four columns: 1) the original 
budget as adopted by the board; 2) the final budget as amended by the board; 3) the actual 
resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the 
difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges. 

Proprietary Funds The County has one kind of proprietary fund. This fund is used to report 
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. The COWlty uses enterprise funds to account for the South Camden Water & Sewer 
District operations. This fund is the same as those functions shown in the business-type 
activities in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. 

Agency and Trust Funds - Agency funds are used to account for assets the County holds on 
behalf of others. The County has four agency funds. These are the funds for Social Services 
clients, School Tax Fund, Motor Vehicle Tax Fund, and the Nancy M. and H. Clay Ferebee III 
Camden County Courthouse Trust. 

Notes to the Financial Statements The notes provide additional information that is essential to 
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 

Other Information In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this 
report includes certain supplementary information. 



Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

Camden County's Net Assets 
Figure 2 

GoYemmental Business-type 

Acthitiu Acthities Total 
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 

CulTOlt and other !5sets S 15,366,237 S 12,574,73 1 S 565,937 S 709,557 S 15,932,174 , 13,284,288 
Restricted C!5h 
Capital asSets 11,203,972 10, 153,3 14 20,609,979 18,494,626 31,813,951 28,647,940 

Total assets S 26,570,209 S 22,728,045 S 21,175,9 16 S 19,204,183 , 47,746,125 S 4 1,932,228 

Long-term liabilities 
outstanding S 18,9 12,495 S 19,41 4,7 10 , 4,064,805 S 2,935,766 S 22,977,300 S 22,350,476 
Olher liabilities 692,122 526,057 153,851 83,334 845,973 609,391 

Totalliabililies S 19,604,617 S 19,940,767 S 4,218,656 S 3,019,100 , 23,823,273 , 22,959,867 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, 

net ofrellW-ed debt , 8,429,168 S 7,799,836 S 16,545,174 S 15,558,860 , 24,974,342 , 23,358,696 
Stabilization by State Statute 2,786,668 975,012 2,786,668 975,012 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a goverrunent's financial 
condition. The assets of the County exceeded liabilities by $23,852,040 as of June 30, 20 II. Net 
assets are reported in three net categories: invested in capital assets, net of related debt of 
$24,974,342, restricted assets of $2,786,668 and unassigned net assets $(3 ,908,970~ The amount 
invested in capital assets, net of related debt category is defined as the COWlty'S investment in 
COWlty owned capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, automotive equipment, office and other 
equipment, and infrastructure) less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire 
those items. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, 
these assets are not available for furure spending. Although the County's investment in its capital 
assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must 
be provided by other sources since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
At June 30, 2011 , the increase in this category of net assets is due to repayment of long-tenn debt 
and the purchase of capital assets from funds provided by grants. The second category of net 
assets is restricted net assets. 

The final category of net assets is unassigned net assets. This balance may be used to meet the 
government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At June 30, 2011, the total unassigned 
net deficit of $3,906,246 is primarily attributable to loans and qualified zone academy bonds that 
were issued on behalf of the school system. As with many counties in the State of North Carolina. 
the County's deficit in unrestricted net assets is due primarily to the portion of the County's 
outstanding debt incurred for the Camden County Board of Education (the school system). Under 
North Carolina law, the County is responsible for providing capital funding for the school system. 
The County has chosen to meet its legal obligation to provide the school system capital funding by 



using a mixture of County funds, loans, and qualified zone academy bonds. The assets are funded 
by the County; however, they are utilized by the school system. Since the County, as the issuing 
government, acquires no capital assets, the County has incurred a liability without a corresponding 
increase in assets. At the end of the fiscal year, approximately $16 million of the outstanding debt 
on the County' s financial statements was related to assets included in the school system's financial 
statements. The school debt is collateralized by a deed of trust granting, among other things, a first 
lien of record on the Project, including the land constituting a part of the Project, all other 
buildings, structures, improvements and fixtures thereon, and all appurtenances thereto of any 
nature whatsoever, excluding mobile or modular classrooms located on the site at any time, subject 
to permitted encumbrances. Accordingly, the County makes installment payments under the 
Installment Financing Agreement for payment of the debt. The County's obligation to make 
payments under the Installment Financing Agreement constitutes a pledge of the County's faith 
and credit within the meaning of any constitutional provision. Principal and interest requirements 
will be provided by an appropriation in the year in which they become due. 

The impact of the inclusion of the school system debt without the corresponding assets was offset 
by the following positive operational initiatives and results: 

• Continued diligence in the collection of property taxes (excluding motor vehicles) by 
maintaining a collection percentage of 82.89%. 



revenues: 

A'ogram revenues: 

Olarges for services 

Operatilg grants and 

Contrrotions 

Capital grants and 

Contributions 

General revenues : 

A'operty taxes 

Other taxes 

hvestrrenl eamilgs 
Otho, 

TOlal revenues 

6<penses: 

Gef'\eralgovernrrenl 

AJblic safety 
Econonic and physical 

developrreol 

t-lJlTlIn services 

CUftural andrecreation 

Education 

nterest on Iong-Iermdebl 

Envirorrental protection 

Water 

Total expenses 

Camden County Changes in Net Assets 
Figure 3 

Gowrnmenta l 

A::tivities 

2011 2010 

Bus iness.t)pe 

ktillities 

201 1 201 0 

$ 1,1 51,029 $ 1,313,571 S 1,084,148 $ 1,232,565 $ 

1,327,958 

19,484 

9,866,712 

3,262,649 

56,166 

12,072 

15,696,070 

2,281,185 

3,0 18,535 

659,500 

1,338,480 

654,744 

1,947,337 

396,632 

740,465 

11,036,878 

1,459,311 

568,132 

7,058,691 

2,709,109 

38,168 

96 
13,147,078 

2,327,868 

2,839,425 

1,056,894 

1,416,559 

848,590 

1,800,000 

455,684 

468,259 

11,213,279 

938,795 122,129 

3,321 1,659 

2,026,264 1,356,353 

1,659,938 1,354,357 

1,659,938 1,354 ,357 

hcrease (decrease) in net assets before 

transfers and special item! 4 ,659,192 1,933,799 366,326 1,996 

Total 

2011 

2,235,177 $ 

1,327,958 

958,279 

9,866,712 

3,262,649 

59,487 

12,072 

17,722,334 

2,281 ,185 

3,018 ,535 

659 ,500 

1,338,480 

654,744 

1,947,337 

396,632 

740,465 

1,659,938 

12,696,816 

5,025,518 

2010 

2 ,546,136 

1,459,311 

690,261 

7 ,058,691 

2 ,709,109 

39,827 

96 
14,503,431 

2,327,868 

2,839,425 

1,056,894 

1,416,559 

848,590 

1,800,000 

455,684 

468,259 

1,354,357 

12,567,636 

1,935,795 

Transfers _--,("S4"0".8,,0,,,41.1 _--"(4,-'"9,,.0,,,8"-',-1 _--'S"'4,,0"'.8,,04'--_--'4,,'9"'.,,08"-''--____ ..:.... ____ __=_ 

hcrease (decrease) in net ass 

t>et assets, July 1 

4 ,1 18,388 1,514,712 907,130 421 ,083 5,025,518 1,935 ,795 

(1 45,839) ( 145,839) Aior ~iod Adjustmenl 

t>el assets , ..kme 30 $ 6,905,666 $ 2,787,278 $ 16,946,374 $ 16,039,244 $ 23,852,040 $ 18,826,522 

Governmental activities: 
$4,118.388. 

Goverrunental activities increased the County 's net assets by 

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased the County's net assets by $907, 130. 



Financial Analysis of the County's Funds 

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds: The focus of the County 's governmental funds is to provide information 
on near-term inflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing 
the County 's financing requirements. Specifically. fund balance available for appropriation can be 
a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal 
year. 

The general fund is the cruef operating fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $1,927,330 while total fund balance reached 
$4,621,31 4. As a measure of the general fund ' s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both 
unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unssigned fund balance 
represents 17 percent of total General Fund expenditure. 

At June 30, 2011 , the governmental funds of the County reported a combined fund balance of 
$11,617,171. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights: 

The County revised the budget on several occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall into one 
of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the 
original budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize 
new funding amounts from external sources, such as, Federal or State grants; and 3) increases in 
appropriations that become necessary to maintain services. The total amendments to the General 
Fund increased revenues by $237,716 (J % of the original budget). Only $92,269 of Appropriated 
Fund Balance was needed to offset the expenditures. 

Proprietary Funds: The County's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found 
in the government-wide statements but in more detail. The primary factors affecting the increase 
was the capital grants received in the amount of$938,795. 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets: The County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of June 30, 2011 , totals $31 ,813,951 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets 
include land, buildings, automotive equipment, office and other equipment, and water and sewer 
lines. 
Major capital asset transactions during the year include: 

• Purchased 2 new vehicles for the Sheriffs Department, 1 for County Manager, 1 for Parks 
and Recreation. 

• Completed the upgrade of the Track at the Community Park 
• Finance software upgrade 
• Creation of new County website 



Camden Couoty's Capital Assets 
(net of dep!"e<:iation) 

Figure 4 

Governmenlal Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

20 11 2010 2011 2010 20 ll 2010 

I=d $ 4,544,473 $ 4,540,435 $ 718,380 S 718,380 $ 5,262,853 S 5,258,815 

Buildings 2,138,656 2,264-,747 2, 13&656 2,264,747 

Furniture, fooures and 
equipmeot 1,192,465 1,241,910 70,521 66,274 1,262,986 1,308,184 

Other 2,042,791 2,085,735 16,924,455 17,321,188 18,967,146 19,406,923 

Construction in Progres s 1,285,587 20,487 ~896,623 388,784 4,182,110 409,271 

TOial S 11,203,972 $ 10,153,314 $ 20,609,979 $ 18,494,626 S 31,813,951 $ 28,647,940 

Additional infonnation on the County's capital assets can be found in Note III(a)5 of the Basic 
Financial Statements. 

Long. term Debt: As of June 30, 2011, the South Camden Water & Sewer District had total 
bonded debt outstanding of $1,011,925. Other outstanding loans include: Drinking Water State 
Revolving Loan, $447,469; State Clean Water Bond Loan, $1,305,000 and Public Water Supply 
Upgrade to Reverse Osmosis Plant, $1,300,411. Camden County has $16,137,691 in outstanding 
debt that is related to the capital improvements and additional schools built on behalf of the 
Camden County School Board, The County has several installment notes outstanding as well. A 
sununary oftotal long-tenn debt as of June 30, 2011 is shown below: 

Revenue Bonds, Installment Notes Payable, and Qualified Zone Academy Bonds 

Camnden County's Outstanding Debe: 
Figure 5 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

2011 2010 201 1 2010 lOll 2010 

General Obligation Debt S 4,064,805 $ 2,935,766 4,064,805 2,935,766 
Installment Purchases 18,912,495 19,3 14,710 18,912,495 19,314,710 

Total S 18,912,495 $ 19,3 14,710 $ 4,064,805 $ 2,935,766 $ 22,977,300 $ 22,250,476 



The State of North Carolina limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government 
can issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that 
govenunent 's boundaries. The legal debt margin for the County is $88,265,521. Additional 
infonnation regarding the County's long-tenn debt can be found in Note 6 of this report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

• The unemployment rate in the County was at 8.5% on June 30, 2011, compared with a 
federal rate of 9.3% and a State rate of 10.4%. The rate for Camden County was 7.1 % rate 
at the end of the prior fiscal year. 

• New residential unit construction was down this year to 7 units. Total new construction 
increased by $1 ,897,100 for this fiscal year. 

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012 

Governmental Activities: The County has approved a $12,197,216 general fund budget for the 
fiscal year 2012 which represents a $348,021 or 3% increase over fiscal year 2011 (calculations 
include amounts to be transferred to other funds). There will be no increase in the tax rate and 
only $386,469 of fund balance will be appropriated. 

Budgeted expenditures for education in the General Fund are expected to remain at $1 ,749,000 for 
current expense and $200,000 for capital outlay, or 9 %. The debt service related to the school 
construction and renovation are budgeted at $1,253,712 and will be funded from the School 
Capital Reserve Fund which gets it' s revenue from a portion of the state sales tax. 

It has become apparent the next few years may be a most challenging time with little or no growth 
in revenues due to the potential severe nature of the economic downturn. Therefore, during this 
period the County will strive to maintain the current level of services to the citizens of the County 
with as little impact on the fund balance as possible. In recent years the County has made great 
strides in improving its financial position and it is imperative to try to preserve this if at all 
possible. However, it is anticipated it may be necessary to use a portion of the unrestricted fund 
balance to balance the general fund budget over the remainder of the current fiscal year and the 
next year. Capital projects which are not funded by grants or special funding will most likely he 
delayed until the regionaVnational economy have recovered and the revenue forecast has 
improved. Fortunately, even with the looming recession the County has been the subject of 
several significant economic development project inquiries which would most certainly grow the 
tax base over the next few years. 



Business-type Activities 

The County has only budgeted for some corrections needed at Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

Information 

This report is designed to provide an overview of the County 's finances for those with an interest 
in this area. Questions concerning any of the infonnation found in this report or requests for 
additional infonnation should be directed to the Finance Officer, Camden County, 117 North Hwy 
343, P.O. Box 190, Camden, NC 27921. 
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Exhibit I 

camden County, North Carolina 
Statement of Net Assets 

'une 30, 2011 

Prima!! Government 
camden 

Governmental Business-type County ABC 
Activities Activtties Total Board 

ASSETS 
cash and cash equivalents $ 9,177,956 $ 552,927 $ 9,730,883 $ 120,915 
Taxes receivable, net 2,995,126 2,995,126 
Accounts receivable, net 602,744 137,571 740,315 
Inventories 108,865 
Prepaid expenses 11,894 
Accrued interest on taxes receivable 406,487 406,487 
Internal Balances 2,183,924 (2,183,924) 
Capital assets: 

Land, non-depreciable 
improvements, and construction in 
progress 5,830,060 3,615,003 9,445,063 25,405 
Other capital assets, net of 
depreciation 5,373,912 13,379,973 18,753,885 67,226 

Total assets 26,570,209 15,501,550 42,071,759 334,305 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities 347,433 85,122 43 2,555 85,235 
Accrued interest payable 109,461 30,141 139,602 
Compensated absences payable 172,83 4 32,894 205,728 
Other postemployment benefits 122,320 16,580 138,900 
Current-portion oflong-term liabilities 1,170,429 241,227 1,411,656 
Long-term liabilities 

Due in more than one year 17,742,066 3,8 23,578 21,565,644 
Total liabilities 19,664,543 4,229,542 23,894,085 85,235 

NET ASSETS 
invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt 8,429,168 16,545,174 24,974,342 92,631 
Stabilization by State Statute 2,786,668 2,786,668 
Register of Deeds 5,654 5,654 
Fire Protection 736,915 736,915 
School Capital 1,907,455 1,907,455 
Unrestricted (6,960,194) 401,200 (6,558,994) 156,439 
Total net assets $ 6,905,666 $ 16,946,374 $ 23,852,040 $ 249,070 

The notes to the fmWlcial statements are Wl integral part of this statement. 



FuncdonslPro&rams 
Primary government: 
Governmental Activities: 

General government , 
Public safety 
Cultural and recreation 
Economic and physical development 
Human services 
Education 
Environmental protection 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Water 

Total business-type activities 
$ 

Component unit: 
ABC Board $ 

Total component unit $ 

Camden County, North Carolina 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 3D, 2011 

Pro&!am Revenues 

Operating Grants 
Cbarges for and 

EXEenses Services Contributions 

2,281,185 $ 338,372 , 37,1;14£ 
3,018,535 421,459 82,830 

654,744 
659,500 284,751 150,000 

1,338,480 12,622 1,041,676 
1,947,337 

740,465 93,825 15,610 
396,632 

11,036,878 1,151,029 1,327,958 

1,659,938 1,084,148 
1,659,938 1,084,148 

12,696,816 , 2,235.177 , 1.327,958 

973.991 , 973,130 , 
973,991 $ 973,130 $ 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes, levied for general purpose 
Local option sales tax 
Other taxes and licenses 

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 
Investment earnings, unrestricted 
Miscellaneous, unrestricted 

Transfers 
Total general revenues, special items, and transfers 
Change in net assets 

Net assets-beginning (restated) 
Net assets-ending 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Capital Grants 
and 

Contributions 

$ 

19,484 

19,484 

938,795 
938,795 

$ 958,279 

$ 
S 



Exhibit 2 

Governmental Business-type Camden County 
Activities Activities Total ABC Board 

$ (1,904,971) $ $ (1,904,97 1) 
(2,514,246) (2,514,246) 

(654,744) (654.744) 
(205,265) (205.265) 
(284,182) (284.182) 

(1,947,337) (1,947,337) 
(631,030) (63 1.030) 
{396,632} [396,632} 

(8,538,407) (8,538,407) 

363,005 363,005 
363,005 363,005 

$ (8,538,407) $ 363.005 $ (8,175,402) 

$ 
$ 

9,866,712 9,866,712 
1,018,924 1,018,924 
2,243,725 2,243,725 

56,166 3.321 59,487 1,111 
12,072 12,072 

[540,804} 540,804 
12,656,795 544,125 13,200,920 1.11 1 

4,118,388 907,130 5,025.518 250 

2,787,278 16,039,244 18,826,522 248,820 
$ 6,905,666 $ 16,946,374 $ 23,852,040 $ 249,070 



Exhibit 3 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 



Exhibit 4 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral partofthis statement. 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 201 t 

Amounts reported fo r governmental activities in the statement of activities are 
different because: 

Net changes in fund balance - government funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as 
expenditures_ However, in the Statement of Activities the 
cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful Jives and reported as depreciation expense. This is 
the amount by which capital outlays increases exceeded 
the book value of capital outlay decreases in fiscal year 

Cost of asset disposed of during the year 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not 
provide current financial resources are not reported as 
revenues in the funds. 

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial 
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of 
the principal oflong-tenn debt consumes the current 
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither 
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. This 
amount is the net effect of these differences in the 
treatment of long-term debt 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do 
not require the use of current financial resources and 
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds 

$ (92.269) 

1,074,862 

(24.204) 

2,810,757 

402,215 

(52.973) 

Total changes in net assets of governmental activities $ 4,118,388 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral pan of this statement. 



Exhibit 5 

Camden County, Nonh Carolina 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011 

General Fund 
Variance 

With Final 
Original Final Positive 
BudGet BudGet Actual {NeGative) 

Revenues: 
Ad valorem taxes $ 6,289,500 $ 6,802,242 $ 6,816,476 $ 14,234 
Other taxes and licenses 2,105,000 1,675,200 2,110,304 435,104 
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues 70,050 76,600 62,813 (13,787) 
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 1,253,675 1.456,108 1,165,978 (290.130) 
Permits and fees 485,704 550,738 514,685 (36,053) 
Sales and services 181,200 163,744 189,990 26,246 
Local contributions 
Investment earnings 100,500 28,000 40,853 12,853 
Miscellaneous 210,500 181.213 138,213 (43,0001 

Total revenues 10,696,1 29 10,933,845 11,039,312 105,467 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General government 2.713.972 2,306,133 1.918,666 387,467 
Public safety 2,525,508 2,738,340 2,718,227 20,113 
Economic and physical development 143,165 850,058 648,337 201.721 
Environmental protection 715,347 785.550 655,832 129,718 

Human services 1,797,381 1,521.308 1,280.189 241.119 
Cultural and recreational 456,788 709,136 616,092 93,044 

Intergovernmental: 
Education 1,487,914 1,949,000 1,947,337 1.663 

Debt service: 
Principal retirement 1,041.508 1.237,075 1,127,215 109,860 
Interest 400,000 400,000 398,946 1.054 

Total expenditures 11,281.583 12,496,600 11.310,841 1.185,759 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (585,454) (1.562,755) (271.529) 1,291,226 

Other financing sources (Uses) 
Proceeds from installment purchases 
Transfers from other funds (3,540,804) (3,540,804) 
Transfers to other funds (1,553,196) 1,255,864 1,255,864 

Fund Balance Appropriated 2,138,650 3,847,695 (3,847,6951 
Total other financing sources and uses 585,454 1,562,755 (2,284,940) (3,847,695) 

Net change in fund balance $ $ (2,556,469) $ ~2,556.469l 

Fund Balances - Beginning 7,177,783 

Fund Balances - Ending , 4,621.314 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 



Exhibit 5 

School Cal2itai Reserve Fund Sl2eclal Cal2itai Reserve Fund 
Variance Variance 

With Final With Final 
Original Final Positive Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Acruai (Negative) Budget Budget Acrual (Negative) 

$ S $ $ S $ $ S 
2,268,000 2,268,000 353,238 (1,914,762) 100,000 100,000 300,298 200,298 

15,000 15,000 14,417 (523) 
300,000 300,000 284,751 (15,249) 

1,000 1,000 5,689 4,689 

2,583,000 2,583,000 652,466 (1,930,534) 101,000 101,000 305,987 204,987 

3,401,000 3,401,000 270,297 3,130,703 

3,401,000 3,401,000 270,297 3,130,703 

2,583,000 2,583,000 652,466 (1,930,534) (3,300,000) (3,300,000) 35,690 3,335,690 

3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 
(2,583,000) (2,583,000) (1,255,864) (1.327,136) 

300,000 
(2,583,000) (2,583,000) (1,255,864) 1,327,136 3,300,000 3,000,000 

$ $ (603,398) $ (603,398) S $ 3,035,690 $ 3,035,690 

2,577,702 480,672 

$ 1,974.304 $ 3,516,362 



camden County, North carolina 
Statement of Net Assets 

Proprietary Fund 

Assets 

Current Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grant reveivable 
Accounts receivable, net 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Capital assets: 

Land and non-depreciable assets 

June 30, 2011 

Other capital assets, net of depreciation 
Capital assets (net) 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Cu rrent Liabilities: 
Accounts payable & accrued liabilities 
Current portion of long-tenn debt 
Due to other funds 

Total Current Liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Compensated absences 
Accrued interest 
Other postemployment benefits 
General obligation bonds payable 
Notes payable - noncurrent 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 
Investment in general fixed assets, net of related debt 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

The notes to the financial statementS are an integral pan of this statement. 

s 

Major 
Water 
,nd 

5ewer 

552,927 
2,059,363 

137,571 
2,749,861 

3,615,003 

23,359,840 

85,122 
241,227 

2,183,924 
2,510,273 

32,894 
30,141 
16,580 

1,274,000 
2,549,578 
3,903,193 

6,413,466 

16,545,174 
401.200 

$ =,,',g6.,.9;:,' 6::. ... ":;':,. 

Exhibit 6 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Net Assets 
Proprietary Fund 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for Services - Water 
Charges for Services - Sewer 
Hook-up connection fees and taps 
Miscellaneous 

Total Operati ng Revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Reverse osmosis plant 
Water distribution 
Wastewater operations 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Tota l Operating Income (Loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues(Expenses): 
Interest income 
Interest expense 

Total Nonoperating Reve nues 
(Expenses) 

Capital Contributions 
Transfers from other funds 

Changes in net assets 

Net Assets, beginning. restated 

Net Assets, ending 

1be noleS to the fmancial statementS are an integral pan of this statement. 
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Major 
Water 
and 

Sewer 

$ 922.301 
88,403 
24,700 
48,744 

1.084,148 

316,S40 
322,750 
487,305 
409,910 

1,536,505 

(452.357) 

3,321 
(123.433) 

(120,112) 

938.795 
540,804 

907.130 

16,039.244 

$ 16,946,374 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Fund 
For TheYear Ended 'une 30, 2011 

Cash Flows From Operating Activities: 

Cash Received from Customers/others 
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash paid to employees for services 

Net cash provided by l used for) operating activities 

Cash Flows from (use by) capital and related 
financing activities: 

Capital contributions 
Federal and State grants 

Principal repayments on long-term debt 
Proceeds of Notes Payable 
Decrease (increase) in grant receivable 
Acquisition of capital assets 
Interest income 
Interest expense 

Net cash flows provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 

Cash Flows from (used for) noncapital financing 
activities: 

Intrafund loans (net) 
Transfers in/out (net) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) 
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating 
Activities: 

Operating Income (Loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating 
income to net cash provided (used) 
by operating activities: 

Depreciation expense 

Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable - trade 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable & accrued expenses 
Increase (decrease) in accrued vacation pay 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Ma jor 
Water 
.nd 

Sewer 

$ 1,074,899 
(631,042) 
(441,125) 

2,732 

938,795 
(171,372) 

1,155,021 
(2,059,363) 
(2,525,263) 

3,321 
(123,433) 

(2,782,294) 

2,213.615 
540,804 

2,754,419 

(25,143) 

578,070 

$:jS~S2~.9~2~7t 

$ (452,357) 

409,910 

(9.249) 
43,510 

:=:150~.9~'~8: $ 2,732 

Exhibit 8 



Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Miscellaneous liabilities 
Due to governmental units 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 

Camden County, North Carolina 
Statement orFiducial)' Net Assets 

June 30, 2011 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Agency 
Funds 

$ 52,448 

21,993 

21,993 

$ 30,455 



I. Summary ofSjgnjfignt Accounting POlideS 

CAMDEN COUNTY. NORTH CAROI.INA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30. 2011 

The accounting policies of Camden County and its component units conform to generally accepted accounting principles as 
applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies: 

A. Reoonjng Entjty 

The County. which is governed by a five-member board of commissioners. is one of the 100 counties established in Nonh 
Carolina under North Carollna General Statute IS3A-IO. A5 required by generally accepled accounting principle>. Ulese 
financial statements present the County and its component units, legally separate entities for which the County is financially 
accountable. South Camden Water and Sewer District (the District) exists to provide and maintain a water system for the 
County residents within the District The District is reported as an enterprise fu nd in the County's financial statements. The 
Camden County ABC Board (the Board) , which has a June 30 year'end,ls presented as if it Is a separate proprietary fund of the 
County (discrete presentation). The blended presentation methods presents component units as a department or unit of the 
County. and offers no separate presentation as with the discrete method. 

-po ng 
ComDOnent Unit Metbod Criteria for Inclusion Separate Financial Statement 

South Camden Water Blended Under State law (NCGS 162A-891. the County's None issued 
and Sewer District board of commissioners also serve as the 

governing board fo r the District 

Camden County ABC Board DIscrete The members of the ABC Board's governing Camden County ABC Board 
board are appOinted by the County. The ABC P.O. Box 22 
Board is required by State statute to distribute Camden. NC 27921 
its surpluses to the General Fund of the County 

B. Rasis OfPrtsentptjOn - Basis 01 ACCounting 

BasIs of Presentation. Measurement Focus· Basis of Accountlnl 

Government·wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display Information about the 
primary government (the County) and its component units. These statements include the financial activities of the overall 
government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal 
activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the County. Governmental 
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Businf'$s­
type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct: expenses and program revenues for the different business­
type activities of the County and for each function of the County's governmental activities. DIrect: expenses are those that are 
Specifically associated with a program or function and. therefore. are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect: 
expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues 
include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or seJVices offered by the programs and (b) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are 
not classified as program revenues, Including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements : The fund financial statements provide information about the County's funds. including its fidudary 
funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category - governmental , proprietary . andjiduciary -
are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds. each displayed in a 
separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. 



Notes to the Financial Statements 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the 
principal activity of the fund . Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal 
values. Nonoperating revenues,such as subsidies, result from non-exchange transactions. Other non-operating items such as 
investment earnings are ancillary activities. 

The County reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - This is the County's primary operating fund . It accounts for all financial resources of the general government, 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

School Capitol Reserve Fund - This fund is used to account for the school needs. 

Special Capitol Reserve Fund - This fund is used to account for the land acquisitions. 

The County reports the following major enterprise fund: 

South Camden Water and Sewer District Fund:This fund is used to account for the operations of the water and sewer district 
within the County. 

The County reports the following fund types: 

Agency Funds: Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement of operating results. Agency funds 
are used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of others. The County maintains the following Agency Funds: the 
Social Services Fund, which accounts for moneys deposited with the Department of Social Services for the benefit of certain 
individuals; the H. Clay Ferebee Fund which holds donated by Mr. and Mrs. Ferebee to be used for the restoration of the 
Camden County Courthouse, the DMV tax fund, and any funds not expended are to be given to the Camden County Board of 
Education. 

c. Measu rement foOlS Basis of ACMuntipg 

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the County are maintained during the year on the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. 

Government-wide, Proprieuuy, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements - The government-wide, proprietary, and fid uciary 
fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus, except for agency funds which have 
no measurement focus. The government-wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using 
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are 
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the County gives (or 
receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements,and 
donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. 
Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have 
been satisfied 

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges 
provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. 
[ntemally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise,general revenues 
include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result fro m providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal 
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the County enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and 
services. The County also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting 
new (;UJ;WlIlers to the water and sewer system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements - Governmental funds are reported using the current fi nancial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when 
measurable and available. 

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term 
debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have 
matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long­
term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 



Notes to the Financial Statements 

The County considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, except for property taxes. Ad 
valorem property taxes are not accrued as a revenue because the amount is not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes 
receivable are materially past due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current 
year. Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on 
registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, Camden County is responsible for billing 
and collecting the property taxes on all registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in the 
County. For registered motor vehicles, property taxes are due the first day of the fourth month after the vehicles are 
registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they became due. Therefore, taxes for vehicles registered 
from March 2010 through February 2011 apply to the fisca l year ended June 30, 2011. Uncollected taxes that were billed 
during this period are shown as a receivable on these financial statements. 

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmentalrevenues,such as utilities franchise tax, collected and held by the State at year·end 
on behalf of the County are recognized as revenue. Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to 
accrual because generally they are not measurable unti l received in cash. Expenditure driven grants are recognized as revenue 
when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been satisfied. 

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement 
grants, categorical block grants. and general revenues. Thus when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted 
and unrestricted net assets availableto finance the program. It is the County's policy to first apply cost-reimbursementgrant 
resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues. 

All governmental and business-type activities and enterprise fun ds of the County follow FASB Statements and Interpretations 
issued on or before November 30. 1989, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins, unless 
those pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements. 

D. BlIdgetary p ata 

The County's budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget is adopted for the 
General Fund, the School Capital ReselVe, Fire Districts. and Special Capital ReselVe Fund, and the Enterprise Funds. All 
annual appropriations lapse at the fiscal year·end. Project ordinances are adopted for Capital Projects Fund and the 
Enterprise Capital Projects Funds. which are consolidated with the enterprise operating fund for reporting purposes. All 
budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at 
the functional level fo r all annually budgeted funds and at the project level for multi-year funds. Amendments are required fo r 
revisions that alter total expenditures of any fund or that change functional appropriations by more than $1.000. The 
governing board must approve all amendments. During the year, several material amendments to the original budget were 
necessary. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim 
budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted. 

E. Assets! labilities and Fund Eqni ty 

1. Deposits and Investments 

All deposits of the County and Camden County ABC Board are made in board·designatedofficial depositories and are secured 
as required by G.s. 159-31. The County and the ABC Board may designate, as an official depoSitory, any bank or savings 
association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the County and the ABC Board may establish time deposit 
accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit. 

State Law [G.s. 159-30(c)J authorizes the County and the ABC Board to investin obligations of the United States or obligations 
fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North Carolina; bonds and 
notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority; obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; 
certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances; and the North Carolina Capital ManagementTrust 
(NCCMT). 
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The County and the ABC Board's investments with a maturity of more than one year at acquisition and non·money market 
investments are reported at fair values as determined by quoted market prices. The securities of the NCCMT Cash Portfolio, 
an SEC registered (2a· 7) money market mutual fund, are valued at fair value, which is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT 
Term Portfolio's securities are valued at fa ir value. 

2. Cash and Cash Equ jyalents 

The County pools moneys from several funds to facilitate disbursementand investment and to maximize investment income. 
Therefore, all cash and investments are essentlallydemand deposits and are considered cash and cash equivalents. The ABC 
Board considers demand deposits and investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less, which are not 
limited as to use, to be cash and cash equivalents. 

J. Ad Yalon:m Taxes R«eiyablr 

In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.5. 159·13(a)], the County levies ad valorem taxes on property other than 
motor vehicles on July 1, the beginningofthe fi scal year. The taxes are due on September 1 (l ien date); however, penalties and 
interest do not accrue until the following January 6. These taxes are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2010. As 
allowed by State law, the County has established a schedule of discounts that apply to taxes, which are paid prior to the due 
date. In the County's General Fund, ad valorem tax revenues are reported net of such discounts. 

4. Aligwance for DQllbtflll ACfQunts 

All re<:eivablesthat historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. This 
amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of re<:eivables that were written off in prior years. 

S. Inyentgries and Prepaid Items 

The inventories of the ABC Board are valued at cost (first·in, first·out), which approximates market. The inventory of the ABC 
Board consists of materials and supplies held for consumption or resale. The cost of the inventory carried by the ABC Board is 
recorded as an expense as it is consumed or sold. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both 
government·wide and fund financial statements. 

6. Capita l Assets 

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are re<:orded 
at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Minimum capitalization cost is $3,000 for all capital assets. The costs of 
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. 

The County holds title to certain Camden County Board of Education properties that have not been included in the County's 
capital assets. The properties have been deeded to the County to permit installment purchase financing of acquisition and 
construction costs and to permit the County to re<:eive refunds of sales tax paid for construction costs. Agreements between 
the County and the Board of Education sive the Board of Education full use of the facilities, full responsibility for mainte03nce 
of the faci lities, and provide that the County will convey title to the property back to the Board of Education, once all 
restrictions of the financing agreements and all sales tax reimbursement requirements have been met. The properties are 
reflected as capital assets in the financial statements of the Camden County Board of Education. 
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Capital assets of the County are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings 
Improvements 
Plant and Distribution 
Furniture and equipment 
Vehicles 
Computer equipment 

illL> 
30 
25 
40 
10 

5-10 
10 

capital assets of the ABC Board are depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line basis as follows: 

Buildings 
Furniture & Equipment 

7_ I oog-tenn Obligations 

illL> 
2S 

5-10 

[n the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types in the fund fina ncial statements, long-term 
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type 
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. 

In the fund financial statements fo r governmental fund types, the face amount of debt issued is reported as an other financing 
source. 

a. Compensated Absences 

The vacation policy of the County, and the ABC Board, generally provides for the accumulation of up to 240 hours earned 
vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the County's govemment-wideand proprietary funds, and 
the ABC Board. an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary-related payments are recorded as leave as 
earned. 

The sick leave policy of the County and the ABC Board provide for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave 
does not vest. but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the determination of length of 
service for retirement benefit purposes. Since none of the entities have any obligation for the accumulated sick leave until it is 
taken, no accrual for sick [eave have been made by the County or its component units. 

9. NerA:isets/Flind BalanceS 

Net Assets 

Net assets in government·wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested [n capital assets, net of 
related debt; restricted: and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent constraints on resources that are either a) externally 
imposed by creditors. grantors. contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or b) imposed by law through state 
statute. 

FUnd Balances 

In lilt: governmental fund financial statements. fu nd balance Is composed of five classifications desIgned to disclose the 
hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent. 

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows; 

Nondespensable Fund Balance - This classification Includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are wither (a) not in 
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact 

Resnicted Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that are resnicted to specific purposes externally Imposed by 
creditors or imposed by law. 

Restricted for Stabilization by State statute - portion of fund balance that is resnicted by State Statute (G.S. lS9-8(a)] 
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Committed Fund Balance - portion of fund balance that can only be used for spedfic purposes imposed by majority vote by 
quorum of Camden County's governing body (highest level of decision-makingauthority). Any changes or removal of specific 
purpose requires majority action by the governing body. 

Assigned Fund Balance - portion of fund balance that the Town of Burgaw intends to use for specific purposes. 

Unassigned Fund Balance - the portion of fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific 
purposes or other funds. 

Camden County has also adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the general fund which instructs managementto conduct 
the business of the County in such a manner that available fu nd balance is at least equal to or greater than 20% of budgeted 
expenditures. Any portion of the general fun d balance in excess of 20% of budgeted expenditures may be appropriated fo r 
one-time expenditures and may not be used for any purpose that would obligate the County in a future budget. 

The County of Camden has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with multiple revenue sources. 
The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond proceeds, federal funds, State funds, local non-dty 
funds, city funds. For purposes of fund balance classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, 
followed in-order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The Finance Officer 
has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best Interest of the County. 

1. Explanation of renain differences between the gQyemmenra! (lind balance sheet and the government_wide statement of 

net asset:; 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance-total governmental funds and net assets­
governmental activities as reponed in the government-wide statement of net assets. The net adjustment ofS( 4,708,801) 
consists of the following elements as follows: 
Description Amount 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore not 
reported in the funds (total capital assets on government-wide statement in governmental 
activities column) S 15,539.61 1 

Less accumulated depreciation (4,335,639) 

Net capital assets 11.203,972 

Liabilities for revenue deferred but earned and therefore reported in the fund financial 
statements but not the government-wide 2,995,126 

Other assets not available for current expenditures 406,487 

Liabilities that, because they are not due and payable in the current period. do not require 
current resources to pay and are therefore not recorded in the fund statements: 

Long-term debts, including bonds and notes payable 
Accrued interest payable 
OPE8 payable 
Compensated absences 

Total adjustment 

(18,912,495) 
(109,461) 
(U9,596} 
(172.834) 

S (4,708,801) 
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2. Exnlanatiqn qfcenafn differences between the gqVernmental fund statement n'reVenueS ewendlOires aDd changes In 
fimd balance and tbe gqVernment.wide statement qfattiyitiNi. 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and cbanges in fun d balances includes a reconciliation between 
net changes in fund balances·total governmental funds and changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the 
government·wide statement of activities. There a re several elements of that total adjustment of$4,213,381 as follows: 

Descrip tion Amount 

capital outlay expenditures recorded in the fund statements but capitalized as assets in the 
Statement of Activities $ 1,$40,506 

Depredation expense, the allocation of those assets over their useful lives, that is recorded 
on the Statement of Activities but not in the fund statements 

Cost of asset disposed of during the year 

Principal payments on debt owed are recorded as a use of funds on the fund financial 
statements, but again affect only the statement of net assets in the government-wide 
financial statement 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are 
not reported as revenues in fund statements 

Expenses reported in the Statement of Activities that do not require the use of current 
resources to pay are not recorded as expenditures in the fund statements. This includes 
accrued interest payable, compensated absences and OPES 

Total adjustment 

(465,644) 

(24,204) 

402,215 

2,810,757 

($0,249) 

$ 4,213,381 

Under North carolina law, the County is responsible for providing capital funding for the camden County Board of Education 
(School System). The County has chosen to meet its obligation to provide school capital funding by using a mixture of County 
funds and general obligation debt. The assets funded by the County are reported as assets of the school system. Since the 
County, as the issuing government, acquires no capital assets, the County has Incurred a liability without a corresponding 
Increase in assets. 

At the end of the fiscal year, the outstanding balance of the school related debt was $16,137,691. However, the entire amount 
of the school debt outstanding is general obligation debt which is collateralized by the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the 
County. The County is authorized and required by State law to levy ad valorem tAXes, without limit as to rate or amount, as 
may be necessary to pay the debt service as it becomes due. Principal and interest requirements will be provided by an 
appropriation in the year in which they became due. 

II . Stewardship Compliance and AcCQunrabjljry 

A. Material Violations of Fjnance-Related I egal and Cqutramlal proyjsions 

Noncompliance with North Carolina General Statutes 

None. 

B. nefjdt Fllod Balance or Net Assets of Individual Funds 

None. 
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C. Excess Of Exnendin,CfS oyer Appropriations 

None. 

III. Detail Notes on All F!!ndS 

A. Aillt:; 

1. Deposits 

All of the County's and the ABC Board's deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under the 
Dedicated Method, all deposits exceeding the federa l depository insurance coverage level are collateralized with securities 
held by the County's or the ABC Board's agents in these units' names. Underthe Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, all 
uninsured deposits are cotlateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. 
Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the County and the ABC Board, these deposits are considered to 
be held by their agent in the entities' name. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method 
for non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearingdeposits. Depositoriesusing the Pooling 
Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer 
does not confirm this information with the County or the ABC Board, or with the escrow agent. Because of the inability to 
measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the County, or the ABC Board under the Pooling Method, the potential 
exists for the under collateralization,and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurerof 
North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the 
Pooling Method. 

The State Treasurer enforces standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions. The County 
relies on the State Treasurer to monitor those financial institutions. The County analyzes the financial soundness of any other 
financial institution used by the County. The County complies with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official 
depositories and verifying that deposits are properly secured. The ABC Board has no fonnal policy regarding custodial credit 
risk for deposits. 

At June 30, 2011, the County's deposits had a carrying amount of$9,673,950 and a bank balance of $9,870,247. Of the bank 
balance, $1,955,850 was covered by federa l depository insurance, the remainder was covered by the pooling method. 

At June 30, 2011, Camden County had $52,454 of cash in the fiduciary fund . 

At June 30, 2011, Camden County had $330 of cash on hand. 

At June 30, 2011, the carrying amount of deposits for camden County ABC Board was $120,915. All of these amounts were 
covered by federal depository insurance. 

2. InVestments 

As of June 30, 2011, the County's investments consisted of $56,603 in the North Carolina Capital Management Trust's Cash 
Portfolio which carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard and Poor's. The County has no fonnal policy on credit risk The 
ABC Board held no investments at June 30, 2011. 

3. pmpeayTax. !/se-Ya)"e ASSessment on Certain lands 

In accordance with the general statutes, agriculture, horticulture, and forestland may be taxed by the County at the present­
use value as opposed to market value. When the property loses its eligibil ity for use-value taxation, the property tax is 
recomputed at market value for the current year and the three preceding fiscal years, along with the accrued interest from the 
original due date. This tax is immediately due and payable. The following are property taxes that could become due if present­
use value eligibili ty Is lost. These amounts have not been recorded in the financial statements. 
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Year L@vi~ Tn Interest Total 
2008 1.192,098 283.123 1,475,221 

'009 1,228,588 181,217 1,409,805 
2010 1,231,703 1,231,703 
Total • 3,652,389 • 464,340 • 4,116,729 

4. Bti:e:i~ble:s 

Receivables at the gov@mment-widel@velatJune30, 2011 were as follows: 

Tax@s& 
R@lat@d 
Accrued 

Accounts Interest 

Govemmental Activities: 
General • 473,385 • 3,525,613 
Other Governmental 92,684 
Total Rcc@ivables 566,069 3,525,613 
Allowance for Doubt (124,QOOl 
Total Govemmental • 566,069 • 3,401,613 

Business-Type Activities: 
Water/Sewer receivables • 208,837 • Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (35.633) 
Total Business'Type • 173,204 • 
5. Capital Assets 

Primary Government 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

emd 
Construction In Progress 

Total capital assets not being depreCiated 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Bulldings 
Other Improvements 
Equipment 
Vehicles and motOf'equipment 

Toul capital assets being depreciated 

Less Iccumulated depreciation for. 

Buildings 
Other improvements 
Equipment 
Vehides and motor equipment 

Toul accumulated depreciation 

Total u.pital assets being depreciated, net 
Governmental aaivity capital assets, net 

Beginning 
Balances 

luly 1, 2010 Increases 

• 4,540,435 • 4,038 
20,487 1,265,100 

4,560,922 1,269,138 

3,385,350 1,127 
2,637,844 49,612 
1,125,689 136,269 
2,402.756 84,360 
9,551,639 271,368 

1,120,603 127,218 
552,109 92,556 
672,629 71.710 

5.592,392 
$ 10,153,314 

Du@From 
Oth@r 

Govemments 

• 36,675 

36,675 

• 36,675 

• 2,023,730 

• 2,023,730 

Decreases 

• 

(113,456) 
(113,456) 

Total 

• 4,035,673 
92,684 

4,128,357 
(124,0001 

• 4,004,357 

• 2,232.567 
{35.633) 

• 2,196,934 

Ending 
Balances 

lune 30, 2011 

$ 4,544,473 
1,285,587 
5,830,060 

3,386,477 
2,687,456 
1,261,958 
2,373,660 
9,709.551 

1,247,821 
644,665 
744,339 

5,373,912 
$ 11,203.972 
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

General government 
Public Safety 
Environmental Protection 
Economic and Physical Development 
Human Services 
Cultural and Recreational 

Total Depreciation Expense 

Business-type Activities 
Water" Sewer District 
Capital assets not being depreclated: 

Coo, 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 
Capital assets being depredated: 

Plant and distribution systems 
Furniture and equipment 
Vehicles and motor equipment 

Total capital assets being depreciated 
Less accumulated deprecia tion for. 

Plant and distribution systems 
Furniture and equipment 
Vehicles and motor equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 
Total Water and Sewer Fund DlstMct. Net 

Discretely presented component unit 
ABC Board: 

Land I 25,405 
Buildings 149,163 
Equipment 47,706 
Construction in Progress 

Less accumulated deprectat [129,643} 
Property and Equipment, m $ 92,631 

B. ! jabilitjes 

1. Payabies 

I 

I 

I 

148,800 
190,988 

10,124 
2,099 

46,060 
67,573 

465,644 

Beginning 
Balances 

718,380 $ 

19,879,820 
56,642 

126,512 
20,062,974 

2,558,632 
39,862 
77,018 

2,675,512 

17,387,462 
$ 18,494,626 

Increases 

17,424 
17,424 

396,733 
5,270 
7,907 

409,910 

Payables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2011, were as follows: 

Vendors 

Governmental Activities $ 347,433 $ 

Business-type Activities I 85,122 $ 

Accrued 
Interest 

109,461 $ 

30,141 $ 

Total 

456,894 

115,263 

Decreases Adjustment 

$ $ I 

Ending 
Balances 

718,380 

19,879,820 
56,642 

143,936 
20,080,398 

2,955,365 
45,132 
84,925 

3,085,422 

16,994,976 
$ 20,609,979 
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2. pension plan and Other Post Employment Obligations 

a. I oral Goyernmental Employees' RetiremeotSystem 

f1m Description - Camden County and the ABC Board contribute to the statewide Local Government Employees' Retirement 
System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined pension plan administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS's 
provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the 
authority to establish and amend benefit proviSions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Local Governmental 
Employees' Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North 
Carolina. The State's CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report 
may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-
1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454. 

Ewldine: £Qlire - Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary to the System. The 
County and the ABC Board are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the County, the current rate for 
employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers is 6.53% and 6.41%, respectively, of annual 
covered payroll. For the ABC Board, the current rate for employees not engaged in law enforcement is 4.98% of annual 
covered payroll. The contribution requirements of members and of Camden County and the ABC Board are established and 
may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The County's contributions to LGERS for the years ended June 30, 
2011, 2010, and 2009 were $166,692, $128,071, and $122,645, respectively. The ABC Board's contributions to LGERS for the 
years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009 were $2,438, $1,835, and $2,792 respectively. The contributions made by the 
County and the ABC Board equaled the required contributions for each year. 

b. ! aw Enforcement Officers Specjal SeparatiOn Allowance 

(1) f1m Description - Camden County administers a public employee retirement system (the "Separation Allowance,,) , a single­
employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the County's qualified sworn law enforcement 
officers. The Separation allowance is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate of compensation most 
recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in 
salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized by the General Assembly. Article 120 ofG.S. Chapter 143 assigns the 
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. 

All full-time County law enforcement officers are covered by the Separation Allowance. At the December 31, 2010, the 
Separation Allowance's membership consisted of: 

Retirees Receiving Benefits 
Terminated Plan Members Entitled to, 

But Not Yet Receiving Benefits 
Active Plan Members 
Total 

A separate report was not issued for the plan. 

(2) Summary ofSignificanr Accounting PolidP5 

16 
16 

Basis ofAcrounting- The County has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go basis. Pension expenditures 
are made from the General Fund, which Is maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

Method !!sed to Vallie Inyestment$' No funds are set aside to pay benefits and administration costs. These expenditures are 
paid as they come due. No liability is reported on the Statement of Net Assets due to the amount not being material. 

(3) Contributions 

The County is required by article 120 of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has chosen to fund the 
benefit payments on a pay as you go basis through appropriations made in the General Fund operating budget. The County's 
obligation to contribute to this plan is established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. There were 
no contributions made by employees. 
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c. Sllpplemental Retirement Income Plan for I aw Enfo rcemen t Officers 

flan Description - The County contributes to the Supplemental Retirementincome Plan (Plan), a defined contribution pension 
plan admInIstered by the Department of the State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits 
to law enforcement officers employed by the County. Article 5 of G.s. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and 
amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The State's CAFR includes the pension trust fund financial 
statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for 
Law Enforcement Officers. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service 
Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699·1410, or by calling (919) 981·5454. 

~ ~. Artide 12E of G.S. Chapter 113 requires the County to contribute each month an amount equal to five percent 
of each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also, the law enforcement officers may make 
voluntary contributions to the plan, Contributions for the year ended June 30,2011 were SI77,377, which consisted of 
SI29,996 from the County and $47,381 from the law enforcement officers. 

d Register of Deeds' S!IPplemenral pension Fund 

flan DescriPtion . Camden County also conbibutes to the Register of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund (Fund), a 
noncontributory, defined contribution plan administered by the North Carolina Department of State Treasurer. The Fund 
provides supplemental penSion benefits to any eligible county register of deeds that is retired under the Local Government 
Employees' Retirement System (LGERS) or an equivalent locally sponsored plan, Article 3 of G,s. Chapter 161 assigns the 
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Register of Deeds' 
Supplemental Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. 
The State's CAFR includes fi nancial statements and required supplementary information for the Register of Deeds' 
Supplemental Pension Fund. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service 
Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981·5454 . 

.EIJ.ndi.n& fll.lky . On a monthly basis, the County remits to the Departmentofstate Treasurer an amount equal to one and one· 
half percent (1.5%) of the monthly receipts collected pursuant to Article 1 of G.s, 161. Immediately following January 1 of 
each year, the Departmentofstate Treasurer divides ninety·three percent (93%) of the amount in the Fund at the end of the 
preceding calendar year into equal shares to be disbursed as monthly benefits. The remaining seven percent (7%) of the 
Fund's assets may be used by the State Treasurer in administering the Fund, For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the 
County's requi red and actual contributions were S874. 

e. Other post Emplgyment Benefits 

Healthcare Benefits 

flan Descriptign . Under the terms of the County resolution, the County administers a single·employer defined benefit 
Healthcare Benefits Plan (the HC8 Plan). As of July 1, 2006, this plan provides postemploymenthealthcare benefits to retirees 
of the County, provided they participate in the North carolina Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (System) 
and have at least twenty years of creditable service with the County. The County pays the full cost of coverage for these 
benefits through private insurers. The County Board may amend the benefit provisions. A separate report was not issued for 
the plan. 

Membership of the HCB Plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2011, the date of latest actuarial valuation: 

Retirees and dependents receiving benefits 
Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
Active plan members 

Total 

General 

Employees 

UW Enforcement 

Ollk"" 

0 0 
0 0 

55 18 
55 18 
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Funding Po)jcy_ The County pays the full cost of coverage for the healthcare benefits paid to qualified retirees under a County 
rHoludon that can be amend~ by the County Board. The County has chosen to fund the healthcare benefits on a pay as you 
go basis. 

The current ARC rate is 2.75% of annual covered payroll For the current year, the County contributed SO. The County obtains 
healthcare coverage through private Insurers. There were no contributions made by employees. The County's obligation to 
contribute to HCB Plan is established and may be amended by the County Board. 

Summary 0/ Significant Accounting Policies. Postemployment expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is 
malntain~ on the modified accrual basis of accounting. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and administration costs. 
These expenditures are paid as they come due. 

AnnualOPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The County's annual other postemployment benefh (OPEB) cost (expense) is 
calculated based on the annual required contribution o/the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance 
with the parametersofGASB Statement45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is projected 
to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 
thirty years. The following table shows the components of the County's annual OPEB cost for the year. the amount actually 
contributed to the plan, and changes on the County's net OPEB obligation fo r the healthcare benefits: 

Annual required contribution 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 
Contributions made 
Increase (decrease) In net OPEB obligation 
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 
Net OPEB obligation, end of year 

s 

I 

68,088 
2,724 

70,812 

70,812 
68.088 

138,900 

The County's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 
2011 were as follows: 

Funded Stawsand Fundi,,!} Progress. As. of June 30, 2011 the plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits 
and, thus, the unfunded actuarial liability (UAAL) was $436.647. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees 
covered by the plan) was $2,482,280, and the ratio of UAAL to the covered payroll was 17.6 percent. Actuarial valuations of 
an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of 
events far into the future. Examples Include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare trends. 
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are 
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the 
future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the 
fina ncial statements, presents multiyear trend infonnation about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or 
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilioH for benefits. 
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For Year Ended Annual NetOPEB 

~~..,..Q!!!!!' 

2011 $ 68,088 0.00% $ 138,900 

Actuarial Methodsand Assumptions . Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantiveplan 
(the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each 
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The 
actuarial methods and assumptions used indude techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of shorNenn volatility in 
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value assets, consistent with the long·tenn perspective of the calculations. 

The projected unit credit method was used. The actuarial assumptions induded a 4.0 percent investment rate of return (net 
of administrative expenses), which is the expected long·tenn investment returns on the employer's own investments 
calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend increase of 10.50 and 
5.00 percent annually. The investment rate induded a 3.75 percent inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets, if any, 
was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five 
year period. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The remaining 
amortization period at June 30, 2011, was 30 years. 

f. Other Employment Benefits 

The County has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for members of the Local 
Governmental Employees' Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple'employer, State-administered, cost-sharing 
plan funded on a one-yeartenn cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees who die in active service after one year of 
contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after reti rement or termination of service and have at 
least one year of contributing membership service in the System atthe time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum 
death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee's twelve highest months salary in a row during the twenty­
four months prior to the employee's death, but the benefit may not be less than $25,000 and will not exceed $50,000. All 
death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan. The County has no liability beyond the payment of monthly 
contributions. Contributions are detenninedas a percentage of monthly payroll, based upon rates established annually by the 
State. The contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the post·employmentbenefitamount and the 
other benefit amount. The County considers these contributions to be immaterial. 

3. Deferred!!lneamed Revenues 

The balance in deferred or unearned revenue on the fund statements and unearned revenues on the government-wide 
statements at year-end is composed of the following elements: 

Taxes receivable - General Fund 
Taxes receivable - Special Revenue Fund 

Total 

Deferred 
Revenue 
2,936,593 

58,533 
$ 2,995,12 6 
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4. Risk Management 

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions, injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County participates in three self-funded risk financing pools 
administered by the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners. Through these pools, the County obtains property 
coverage equal to replacement cost values of owned property subject to a limit of $125.5 million for anyone occurrence, 
general, auto, professional and employment practices liability coverage of $2 million per occurrence, auto physical damage 
coverage for owned autos, at actual cash value, crime coverage of$250,000 per occurrence, workers' compensation coverage 
up to the statutory limits and health and dental insurance for County employees. The pools are audited annually by Certified 
Public Accountants, and the audited financial statements are available to the County upon request Two of the pools are 
reinsured through a multi-state public entity captive for single occurrence losses in excess ofS500,000 up to a $2 million limit 
for liability coverage, $600,000 of aggregate annual losses in excess of $50,000 per occurrence for property, auto physical 
damage and crime coverage, and single occurrence losses of $350,000 for workers' compensation. For health and dental 
insurance, the County is insured through Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Carolina, a private insurance company. 

The County carries flood insurance on the renovated courthouse. Other buildings are not insured for flood. 

[n accordance with G.S. 159-29, the County's employees that have access to $100 or more at any given time of the County's 
funds are perfonnance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The Finance Director is bonded for $650,000, the tax 
collector is bonded for $50,000 and the sheriff is bonded for $25,000. The remaining employees that have access to funds are 
bonded under a blanket bond for $15,000. 

There have been no s[gnlficant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year and no claims have been made in the 
past three years. 

Camden County ABC Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft: of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The Board has commercial property, general liability, auto liability, workers' 
compensation,and employee health coverage. The Board does not have liquor [egal liabilitycoverage. [n accordance with G.S. 
18B-803, the ABC Board's employees that have access to the Board's funds are perfonnance bonded through a commercial 
surety bond. Employees are bonded under an employment practices bond for up to S5,000 per claim. There have been no 
significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prioryear and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past 
three fiscal years. 

S. Contingent liabilities 

At June 30, 2011, they County was a defendant to various lawsuits. In the opinion of the County's management and the County 
attorney, the ultimate effect of these legal matters will not have a material adverse effect on the County's financial position. 

6. I Qng_Term Obligations 

a. Installment puubascs 

As authorized by State law [G.5. 160A-20 and 153A-ISS.I], the County has financed various property acquisitions for use by 
Camden County Board of Education by installment purchase. The installment purchases were issued pursuant to a deed of 
trust that requires that legal title remain with the County as tong as the debt is outstanding. The County has entered into a 
lease with Camden County Board of Education that transfers the right and responsibilities for maintenance and insurance of 
the property to the Board of Education. The lease calls for nominal annual lease payments and also contains a bargain 
purchase option. The lease tenn is the same as that of the installment purchase obligation. Due to the economic substance of 
the transaction, the capital assets assodatedwith the installment purchase obligation are recorded by the Board of Education. 
These loans are included in the loans descRibed below. 
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The installment purchases of the County, including the Qualified Zone Academy Bonds, are outlined below: 

$10,106,075 loan from Bank of America, NA (QZAB) fo r renovation and modernization of Camden High 
School and Camden Middle SchooL The note is secured by a deed of trust on the two schools and calls for 
annual payments 0($544,605 and no interest is charged. $ 4,660,025 

$1,000,000 loan from Bank of America. NA for renovation and modernization of Camden High School and 
Camden Middle School. The note is secured by a deed of trust on the two schools and calls fo r an annual 
payments of $50,000 plus 4.4%. 600,000 

52,000,000 loan from Bank of America, N.A. (QZAB) for renovation and modernization of Camden High School 
and Camden Middle School. The note is secured by a deed of trust on the two schools and calls for annual 
payments of5112,334 and no interest is charged. 1,213,662 

5264,000 loan from Rural Housing Service to finance courthouse renovations. The loan is secured by the 
courthouse, The note calls for annual payments 0($20,297 including interest at 4.5%. 217,953 

561,500 loan from BB&T for the purchase of imaging equipment. The loan is secured by the equipment. The 
note calls for annual payments of512,300 for 5 years including interest at 3.82%. 23,274 

$453,000 loan from BB&T for the re-finance of a two pumper trucks. The loan calls for annual payments of 
54B,072 including interest at 3.93%. 358,577 

5725,000 loan from BB&Tdated August 16, 2010 forthe construction ora Fire Station Building. The loan calls 
for annual payments of 536,250 plus interest at 4.43%. 725,000 

51.350,000 loan from Thomas M. Noblitt for the purchase of I and. The loan is secured with the property. The 
loan calls for annual payments 0($150,000 for 9 years. There is no interest stated in the loan. 1,050,000 

$600,000 loan from Morrisete for the purchase of land. The loan is secured with the property. The loan calls 
for annual payments of$100,00 for 6 years. There is no interest stated in the loan. 400,000 

$10,000,000 loan from US Department of Agriculture for the construction of an intermediate school. The note 
calls for annual payments ofS520,000 for 40 years plus interest at 4.125%. 9,664,004 

$ 18,9l2,495 

b. Genera! ObHgatjoo In debtedness 

All general obligation bonds serviced by the County's general fund are collateralized by the fu ll faith, credit, and taxing power 
of the County. South Camden Water and Sewer District issues genera! obligation bonds to provide fun ds for the acquisi tion 
and construction of major water and sewer capital improvements. These bonds, which are recorded in the Water District 
Fund, are collateralized by the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the District. Principal and interest payments are 
appropriated when due. 

The County's general obligation bonds are payable at June 30, 2011, are comprised of the follOwing individual issues: 

Serviced by South Camden Water and Sewer District: 
General obligation bonds serviced by the District: 

51,600,000 - 1996 Water District bonds with annual installments of$17 ,000 to $66,000 through June 1, 2036; 
interest at 4.875% $ 1,011,925 

Other Loans: 

Drinking Water State Revolving Loan: A loan of$813,581 calling for 20 annual prinCipal payments of $40,679 
plus interest at 2.87% (payable semiannually) 447,469 
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State DWSRF Revolving Loan: A loan 0($1,367,122 calling for 20 annual principal payments 0($68,356 plus 
interest at 2.50%. At year end $1,300,411 has been drawn down on the loan amount. 1,300,411 

State Clean Water Bond l.oan: A loan of$I,922,657 calling for 19 annual principal payments of $101,192 plus 
interest at 4.02% 1,305,000 

Total $ 4,064,805 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the County's and District's general obligation bonds and loans are as 
follows: 

Governmental Business Type 
Year Ending Activities Activities 

june 30, PrinciE!al Interest PrinciE!al Interest 
2012 1,170,429 482,319 241,227 185,362 
2013 1,177,679 471,172 242,227 174,864 
2014 1,172,925 459,250 244,227 168,360 
2015 1,180,311 448,572 245,727 161,438 
2016 1,087,999 437,102 247,727 154,581 

2017-2021 4,373,100 1,978,466 1,266,140 667,090 
2022-2026 1,357,478 1,696,465 651,959 538,095 
2027-2031 1,389,628 1,415,752 595,571 472,223 
2032-2036 l.478,983 1,121,017 330,000 378,263 
2037-2041 1,810,248 789,752 
2042-2046 2,215,712 384,288 
2047-2051 498,003 20,481 

Total $ 18,912,495 S 9,704,636 , 4,064,805 $ 2,900,276 

At June 30, 2011 Camden County had a legal debt margin of$88,264,521. 

c. I QPg-Teon Obligatiop Actiyjty 

The fo llOwing is a summary of changes in the County's long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 ; 

Balance Balance Current 
6130[2010 Increases Decreases 6[30[2011 Portion 

Governmental Activities: 
Installment Purchases $ 19,314,710 $ 725,000 S (1,127,215) $ 18,912,495 S 1,170A29 
OPEB 62,394 59,926 122,320 
Compensated absences 177,473 87,264 (91,903) 172,834 
Total governmental 
activities S 19,554,577 S 872,190 $ P,219,1181 S 19,207,649 $ 1,170,429 

Balance Balance Current 
6[30[2010 Additions Retirements 6[30[2011 Portion 

BusinessType Activities; 
General obligation debt $ 3,081.156 S 1,155,021 $ (171,372) S 4,064,805 $ 241,227 
OPEB 5,694 10,886 S 16,580 
Compensated Absences 21.976 10.918 - S 32,894 

Total business type activities $ 3,108,826 $ 1,176,825 $ (171,372) $ 4,114,279 $ 241,227 

Compensated absences for governmental activities typically have been liquidated in the general fun d and are accounted for on 
a LIFO basis, assuming that employees are raking leave time as it is earned. 
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Inter-fund Balances aDd Actiyjty 

Transfer to/ from other fund 

Transfers FromfTo Other Funds at June 30, 2011 consists of the following: 

From the General fund to: 

Special Capital Reserve Fund (reserve acromulation) 
Water and Sewer (expenditures) 

From School Capital Reserve Fund to: 
General Fund (school debt) 

Totals 

In redund BalanceS and ActiVity 

$ 3,000,000 
540,804 

1,255,864 

$ 4,796,668 

Balances due to/from other funds at June 30, 2011, consist of the following: 

Due to the General Fund from the Water and Sewer Fund $ 2,183,924 
Total $ 2,183,924 

The interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or 
reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded In the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds 
are made_ 

C. fUn d Balance 

The follOwing schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of General fund balance that is 
available for appropriation: 

Total fund balance - General Fund 
Less: 
Stabilization by State Statute 
Remaininl/: Fund Balance 

$ 4,6Z1,314 

2,693,984 
$ 1.927,330 

The outstanding encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments related to purchase orders and 
Encumbrances General fund Non-Ma'or Funds 

s • S 

Albemarle Mental Health remer and Developmental Disabilities & S'lhStanre ahuse Services 

The County participates in a joint venture (Albemarle LME) to operate the Center. The Albemarle LME has contracted with 
East Carolina Behavioral Health (ECBH) to stabilize the Albemarle operation and develop the network of services. The Center 
i$ a volunteer association of tcn county governments liS a Joint venture participating governments appointing one board 
member(commlssioner)to the Center's board. The Center was established as a joint venture among the participatingcounties 
to coordinate funding from federal and State agencies and also to realize economies of scale in the providing of mental health 
services. In accordance with the intergovernmental agreement between the participating governments and ECBH, the County 
appropriated $9,730 to the EC8H to supplement its activities. Nonl! o{the participating governments have any equity interest 
in the ECBH, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 20U. Complete financial 
statements for the Ccnter can be obtained from the ECBH's office at 112 Hl!alth Drive, Greenvilll!, North Carolina 27834-7704. 
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Central Communjcations/Emergency Management System 

The Emergency ManagementSystem was established as a joint venture between Camden County, PasquotankCounty, and the 
City of Elizabeth City to coordinate grant funds and realize economies of scale. Each entity appoints one member to the 
governing board. In accordance with the intergovernmental agreement between the participating governments, the County 
appropria ted $156,009 to the System to supplement its activities. None of the participating governments have any equity 
interest in the System,so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2011. Complete financial 
statements fo r the System can be obtained from the System's office at 103 S. Road Street, Elizabeth City, North Carolina 27909. 

Albemarle District lail 

The operation of the Jail is shared with two other counties in the surrounding area. Each county's contributions are based on 
a per capita assessment based on the most recent census figures available, and each county appoints one or more membersto 
the Board. In accordance with the intergovernmental agreement between the participating governments, the County 
appropriated $275,899 to the Jail to supplement its activities. None of the participating governments have any equity interest 
in the Jail , so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2011. Complete financial statements 
for the Jail can be obtained fro m the Jail's office at 320 S. Hughes Blvd., Elizabeth City, North Carolina 27907. 

Pasquotank-Camden I jbr;uy 

Pasquotank and Camden counties appoint the Board of the Library and provide support to the Library based upon their 
respective populations. The Board is responsible for approving the budget and designating the managementofthe Library. In 
accordance with the agreement between the participating governments, the County appropriated $143,156 to the Library to 
supplement its activities. None of the participating governments have any equity interest in the Library, so no equity interest 
has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2011. The Library does not issue financial statements, but it is 
blended into the financial statements of PasquotankCounty, and these financial statements can be obtained from the County's 
office at 206 E. Main Street, Elizabeth City, North Carolina. 

Albemarle Commission 

The County is a member of the Albemarle Commission, which is a voluntary association of county governments. The 
Commission was established as a joint venture among the participating counties to coordinate funding from federal and State 
agencies. Each county appoints two members of which one must be an elected official to the Commission's governing board. 
The County paid membership fees 0($6,325 to the Commission during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. 

Regional Confinement Facility 

The County is a member of the RegionalJali Facility, which is an agreement of three county governments to provide financing. 
construction and operation of a regional jail. The Facility was established as a joint venture among the participating counties 
to coordinate funding from local, federal, and State agencies. The County contributed $100,755 to the Facility during the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2011 . 

Albemarle Regional Hea lth Seryices (ARHSl 

Albemarle Regional Health Services is a voluntary association of seven county governments. ARHS was established as a joint 
venture among the participating counties to coordinate funding from federal and State agencies and to realize economies of 
scale in providing health care services. The County contributed $35,820 to ARHS during the year ended June 30, 2011. None 
of the participating governments have any equity interest in ARHS, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial 
statements at June 30, 2011. Complete financial statements can be obtained at ARHS's office on 711 Roanoke Avenue, 
Elizabeth City, North Carolina 27909. 

IV. Benefit payments ISsued by the Stat" 

The amounts listed below were paid directly to individual recipients by the State from federal and State moneys. County 
personnel are involved with cenain functions, primarily eligibility determinations, which cause benefit payments to be issued 
by the State. These amounts disclose this additional aid to the County recipients that do not appear in the bas!c fi nancial 
statements because they are not revenues and expenditures of the County. 
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Foster Care 
Adoption Assistance 
Low Income Energy Assistance 
Medicaid 
Wle 

Federal 
$ 3,051 $ 

27,762 
40,954 

4,542,721 
1,033 

51". 
637 

4,709 

1,869,135 

V. Summary DisclQsure ofSignjfjcant Commitments and Contingencies 

Federal and State Assisted Programs 

The County ha.s received proceeds from feder.ll and State grants. Periodic audits of these grants are required and certain costs 
may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant agreements. Such audits could result in the refund 
of grant moneys to the grantor agencies. Managementbelieves that any required refunds will be immaterial. no provision has 
been made in the accompanying financial statements fo r the refund of grant moneys. 

VI. Restatements orNe! Asset5 

Net assets has been decreased at June 30, 2011 by $145,390 in the business-type activities to reflect a loan draw down that 
was reported as a grant in the prior year. 

VI I. QMYCoUectjons 

The County maintains the 3% DMV interest collections in the General Fund. During the year, the County's activity is shown 

30-!un-11 
Begin Balance S 341 
Collected 5,110 
Remitted 
End 

(4,9871 
Balance S 464 



REQUIRED 

SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA 

This section contains additional information required by generally accepted 
accounting principals. 



Actuarial 
Actuarial Value of 
Valuation Assets 

Date (a) 

31-Dec-08 

camden County, North carolina 
Other Post Employment Benefits 

Required Supplementary Information 
Schedule of Funding Progress 

Actuarial Accrued 
Liability (AAL) Unfunded 
-Projected Unit AAL Funded 

Credit (UAAL) Ratio 
(b) (b - al (a/b) 

$ 436,647 $ 436,647 0.0% 

UAALasa 
Covered % of Covered 
Payroll Payroll 

(cl «(b . allc) 

$ 2.482.280 17.60% 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Other Post Employment Benefits 

Required Supplementary Information 
Schedule of Employer Contributions 

Year Ended 
rune 30, 

Annuai Required 
Contribution 

Percentage 
Contributed 

2010 
2011 

Notes to the Required Schedules: 

68,088 
70,812 

0.00% 
0.00% 

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial valuations 
at the dates indicated Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows. 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 

Amortization Method 

Remaining Amortization Period 

Asset Valuation Method 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

Investment Rate of Return 

Medical Cost Trend 

Includes Inflation at 

December 31, 2008 

Projected Unit Credit 

Level Percent of Pay Open 

30 Years 

Market Value 

4.00% 

10.5% - 5.00% 

3.75% 



GENERAL FUND 

The General Fund accounts for resources traditionally associated with government that 
are not required legally or by sound financia l management LO be accounted for in 

other funds. 



Revenues: 
Ad Valorem Taxes: 

Taxes 
Penalties and Interest 

Total 

Other Taxes and Licenses: 
Local option sales tax 
Franchise tax 
Scrap tire disposal tax 
Video programming 
White goods tax 
Medicaid hold hannless 
Priviliege licenses 

Total 

Camden County, North Carolina 
General Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances· Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Final 
Budset 

$ $ 

6,002,242 

1,675,200 

Unrestricted Intergovernmental revenues: 
Beer and wine tax 
Payments in lieu of taxes 
Refuge revenue sharing 
Drug investigation fund 
ABC profit distribution 
Tax refunds - sales and gasoline 

Total 76,600 

Restricted Intergovernmental: 
State and Federal Grants 
Oilier 
Court facilities fees 

Total 1,456,108 

Pennits and Fees: 
Franchise fees 
Pet licenses 
Gun fees and permits 
Register or Deeds 
Medicaid transportation fees 
Building permits and inspections, including land use fees 

Total 550,738 

Variance 
Posi tive 

Actual (Nesative) 

6,742,168 $ 

74,308 
6,016,476 1<1,,234 

1.018,924 
435,941 

12,486 
7,940 
3,124 

631,449 
440 

2,110,304 435.104 

42,668 
623 

8,519 
1.615 
6,648 
2,740 

62,813 (13,787) 

1,093,583 
37,842 
34,553 

1.165,978 (290,130) 

49,927 
380 

6,885 
113.808 

12,622 
331,063 
514,685 (36,053) 



Sales and SelVices: 
Rent and Concessions 
Jail fees 
Officer fees 

Total 

Investment Earnings: Interest 

Miscellaneous: 
Sale of fixed assets 

Camden County, North Carolina 
General Fund 

Schedwe of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes In Fund Balances· Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Final 
Budget 

163.744 

28,000 

Sheriffs fundraisers and Christmas Fund 
OLF relief 
Insurance proceeds 
Other 

Total 181,213 

TOTAL REVENUES 10,933,845 

Expenditures: 
General Government: 

Governing body 
Administration 
Finance 
Tax administration 
Personnel 
Legal 
Register of deeds 
Elections 
Public buildings 
Court facilities 

Total general government 2,306,133 

Variance 
Positive 

Actual (Negative) 

158,167 
7,899 

26.246 

40,853 12,853 

12,480 
11,208 
93,825 
9,625 

11,075 
138,213 (43,000) 

11,039,312 105,467 

106,753 
394,007 
212,420 
393,526 

53,056 
197,01 6 
205,570 

70,056 
253,411 

32,851 
1,918,666 387,467 



Public Safety: 
Sheriff 
Jail 
Region:!1 jail 

camden County, North carolina 
General Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances · Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Final 
Bud,!l;et 

Juvenile justice and deliquency program 
School resource officer 
Animal control 
Inspections 
Fire marshall 
Contribution to fire districts 
Emergency management 
Central communications 
Medical examiner 

Total 2,738,340 

Economic and physical development: 
Economic development 
Agricultural extension 
Planning 
Albemarle commission 
Resource conservation and development 
Public transportation authority 
Soil/water conservation 

Total 850,058 

Human services: 
Health: 

Nutrition programs 
Mosquito control 
Albemarle hopeline 
Regional health 
Other healLh programs 

Total human services 85,606 

Mental Health: 

Regional mental health 
Total 9,730 

Transportation; Traffic 3,060 

Variance 
Positive 

Actual [Negative} 

1,444,864 
275,899 
100,755 

57,043 
102,023 

152,594 

424,640 
11,548 

144,461 
4,400 

2,718,227 20,113 

27,969 
71,701 

408.714 
6,325 

750 
124,518 

8,360 
648,337 201.721 

24,252 
67 

1,500 
35,820 
11,963 
73,602 12,004 

9,730 
9,730 

1.085 1.975 



Social services: 
Adminis tration 
Day care 
Medical assistance 
County provided OIssistance 
Domestic violence 
Adoptions 
Aid to the blind program 
Foster care 
Crisis intervention 
Work firs t program 
Other assistance 

Total social services 

Total Human Services 

Cultural and Recreational: 
Recreation 
Library 
College of the Albemarle 
Senior citizens services 
4-H camp and grant 

Camden County, North carolina 
General Fund 

Schedule o( Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Final 
Budget 

1,422,912 

1.521,308 

Total Cultural and Recreational 709,136 

Environmental protection: 
Public works administration 
Forestry program 
Aquatic weed control 
Beaver management assistance program 
Sanitation 

Total environmental protection 785,550 

Education: 
Public Schools: 

Current Expense 
Capital Outlay 

Total Education 1,949,000 

Debt Service: 
Principal Retirement 
Interest and Fees 

Total Debt Service 1,637,075 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,496,600 

Revenues over Expenditures (1,562,755) 

Variance 
Positive 

Actual {Negative) 

861,676 
153,915 

17,103 
54,731 

7,922 
2,024 

667 
28,292 
32,935 
24,134 
12,373 

1,195,772 227,140 

1,280,189 241,119 

183,798 
143,156 

76,100 
85,279 

127,759 
616,092 93,044 

35,714 
42,422 

319 
4,000 

573,377 
655,832 129,718 

1,749,000 
198,337 

1,947,337 1,663 

1,127,215 
398.946 

1.526,161 110,914 

11,310,841 1.185,759 

{271.529) 1,291,226 



Camden County, North Carolina 
General Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances· Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds From Capital Leases 
Fund Balance Appropriated 
Transfers (toJ/from Other Funds: 
Special revenue - school capital reserve 
Special revenue - special capital reserve 
Capital Projects - water project 
Water and sewer district 
Capital projects - sewer project 
Capital projects - sewer project 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net change in fu nd balance 

Fund balances: 
Beginning of year, July 1 

End of year, June 30 

Final 
Budget 

3.847,695 

1.255.864 
(3,000,000) 

(89,950) 
(170,854) 
(115,000) 
(165,000) 

1,562,755 

$ 

Actual 

1.255.864 
(3,000,000) 

(89.950) 
(170.854) 
(115.000) 
(165.000) 

(2,284.940) 

(2,556.469) 

7,177,783 

4,621.31 4 

$ 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

(3.847,695) 

(2,556.469) 



OTHER MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Major Governmental Funds - Special Capital Reserve Fund 
Major Governmental Funds - School Capital Reserve Fund 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Special Capital Reserve Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances· Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended 'une 30, 2011 

2011 

Budget Actual 

Revenues 
Other taxes $ $ 300,298 
Land sale 
Investment earnings 5,689 

Total Revenue 101,000 305,987 

Expenditures 
Operating expenses 270,297 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 3,401,000 270,297 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (3,300,000) 35,690 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers from other fu nds 3,000,000 3,000,000 
Proceeds from Lease Purchase 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 3,000,000 3,000,000 

Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (300,000) 3,035,690 

Fund Balance Appropriated 300,000 

Net change in fund balance $ 3,035,690 

Fund Balance: 
Beginning ofYear. July 1 480,672 

End of Year, June 30 $ 3,516,362 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 

204,987 

3,130,703 

3,335,690 

3,335,690 

(300,000) 

$ 3,035,690 

commited for cap rsv 



Camden County, North Carolina 
School Capital Reserve Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances· Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

2011 

Budget Actual 
Revenues: 

Other taxes $ $ 353,238 
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 14,477 
Miscellaneous 284,751 
Investment earnings 

Total Revenues 2,583,000 652,466 

Expenditures: 
Education: 

Operating expenses 
Debt service: Principal 
Debt service: Interest 

Total Expenditures 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 2,583,000 652,466 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) : 
Transfer from other funds 
Transfer to other funds (2,583,0001 (1 ,255,864} 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) (2,583,000) (1 ,255,864) 

Revenues and Other Financing 
Sources Over (Under) Uses (603,398) 

Fund Balance Appropriated 

Net change in fund balance $ (603,398) 

Fund Balance: 
Beginning of Year, July 1 2,577,702 

End of Year, June 30 $ 1,974,304 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 

(1,930,534) 

(1 ,930,534) 

1,327,136 

1,327,136 

(603,3 98) 

$ (603,398) 



CamdeD CoUDty, Nom CaroUua 
NOllmajor GovertuD.eDtal Fw .. h 

Comblnllll Ba lafta! Sb" , 
JUDelO, 20 11 

AUb:lm~tlon 

Eabanc~m~DI Dismal Fi", DLstr\ct Funds 
and PreSfl'YJ ' Toori"", ""'m, COurtho ...... ."m JoyceCrHk 'm 

lion fund Dtvtlo~ment Vlslb:lrCenter & Shiloh Mills DrainaGe FUnd Grant Fund 

Assets; 

Gash and investments ,.,. 85.575 68.241 509.163 33UOO 1«.827 6.274-
Accounts rKrivable 2.555 ~, 3)K)7 18.831 " Taxes receivable (net) 10,174- 45.427 2.932 

Total As$H$ 5.654 88,130 68,546 523244 396.358 147.759 6.313 

Uabll"~. a nd Fond. 8:a1~., 

Current llabilldtt 
Accounts pay:abl~ 3,141 58244 48.104 " Due from oth~ funds 

Noncurrent llabilldes: 
DeferTed revenues 10.174 45.427 2.932 

Total UabllIdes 3,141 68.418 93.531 , .... 
FUnd 8;alances: 

Restrined 
Stablliution by State Statute 2,555 '" 3.907 18.631 " ~~,ofDeeds ,.,. 
Fire Protection 450.919 285.996 

Committed 
Tax Revaluation 
Economic development 85,575 65.100 144.815 6274-

Total fund balances 5.654 88.130 65.405 454.826 3G4.827 144.815 6.313 

Totaillabl'i!ies and fu~d baWlc,"" 5.654 88,130 68.546 523.244 398.358 147.75'/ 6.313 



~ RI"lftlIIf f'IInds 

CoIIImunlty 
,..".. 

22.318 

". 
22.516 

'" 

'" 

". 

".., 
22.290 

22.516 

Parkland 
R.tatlldoa 

""' 
~uatioa 

"'" 
412.961 

412.961 

412.961 

412.961 

412.961 

Total Nonmajor 

"""" -~ " ... 
1,5.89.113 

25,835 

"-'" 
1.673.481 

109.737 

58.533 
168270 

25,835 
5,654 

736.915 

412,961 
323,846 

1.51)5.2 11 

1.673.481 

Co.eital Proi«t Funds 

Sc3lUrtd Total NOJImajor 

Housi", Co.pital Project 

""", " .... 
T<KaI NOMIajor 

~mlMl\tal 

" .. 
1,5.89.11] 

25,835 
58.533 

109.737 

58.533 
168270 

25,835 
5,654 

736.915 

412.961 
323,846 

1505.211 

1.673.481 



camden CollDty, Nonh tan>Una 
Noo.maJor Gowm menh.i Funds 

Combln1.Dc Statement of Revenues, ~ndltures, and 
ChanJles In Fund Billaocu 

For tbe Flseal Year Ended June 30, 1011 

Auto Fire District FllJlds 
Enhancement Dismal 
and Pr ..... ..",.· Tourism ,-, Courthouse ",.m JOy('eCrftk 'n' 

lion Fund ~eloemenl Visitor ~nter &. Shiloh Mills Dtaln~&e Fund Grant Fund 
Revenues: 

Ad Valorem To,...s 1 1,972 44,029 48,494-
Otherwes 28.581 213.379 151.261 
Local contributions 
DonatioM 
Investment nrnlngs " ." 3.009 2,875 '" "'a 11.102 
Miscellaneous m "" Ft'd.eral and State gnnt'l 150,000 10,100 

'OK 5,368 16,755 
Totol revenues ,",00 29,070 161,4-77 348,949 233,020 49,492 

Expenditures: 
General government '.000 
Public safety 249,4-37 1.050,222 
EnYironmentol protection 16.898 
Economic ilnd physical devPlopmenl 
Cultural and recrealion 16.818 167,156 ""'" EdUCItion 
Debtservice: 

Prindpa' retirement 
Interest aQd fees 

ToGll ExpendJNres '.000 16.810 167,156 24-9,431 1.oS0,222 """ , ... 
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures ~1.6001 12.260 (S.6 791 99,512 (817,2021 (21,4-06j (2,068) 

Other Financinl Sources (Uses): 
Procftd. of long-term debt 725.000 
Transfers from [to) odIersourres 
Transfer. from (toJ other SOUrces 

Total other llnanclng SOurces (uses) 72S.OOO 

Net change La Fund S.lance (UOO) 12.260 (S.679) 99,512 (92,202) (27.4-06) (2,068) 

Fund bat..ncfS: 
BeglnolngofYear.July I 7.254- 75.870 71.084 355,314 397,029 172221 8.381 

End ofyeit./Une 30 5.654- 88.130 6S,405 454.026 304.021 144.815 6.313 



Capital 

""'" "'''' 
"""M' Total Jrlonmajor """"" Total Jrlonmajor Total H<>nma.Ior 

ConImunlry ,~"'" , ...... "'" Special R ...... u~ "-. Clpital project ""~ .. ,.,,""'" Fund Fund "'"'" 
,~, "'.,. Funcls 

14.964 239.479 • 219.4~ 
453.221 453.22 1 

2.132 2.132 2.132 

no "', 9.624 9.624 
11,102 11.102 

%. , .. 
168.100 ,.." ,.." 113.107 
22,123 22.123 U, 77.081 904.613 7,139 7.139 911.752 

'.000 7.000 
1.299,659 1.299.659 

76.898 76.899 
,.." ,.." ,.." 

30.238 216.280 216.200 

30.238 1.599,837 ,.." ,.." 1.604.844 

00,122) 77,081 (695.224) 2.132 2,132 f693,092) 

725,000 725,000 

725,000 725.000 

(30.122) 77,081 29,776 2,132 2.132 3l.908 

52.402 335.880 1.475.435 [2,132J [2.132J l.473.303 

22.280 41 2.96 1 • 1.505.211 1.505.211 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted 
to expenditure for particular purposes. 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Automation Enhancement and Preservation fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

for the fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

2011 

Fi nal 
Budget Actual 

Revenues 
Fees $ S 5,368 
Investment Earnings 32 
Other income 

Total revenues 3,100 5,400 

Expenditures: 
Operating expenses 7,000 

Total Expenditures 10,350 7,000 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (7,250) (1,600) 

Other Finandng Sources (Uses): 
Transfers from Other Funds 
Transfers to Other Funds 

Total Other FinanCing 
Sources (Uses) 

Revenues and Other Finandng 
Sources Over (Under) Uses (7,250) (1,600) 

Fund Balance Appropriated 7,250 

Net change in fund balance $ (1,600) 

Fund Balance: 
Beginning of Year, July 1 7,254 

End of Year, June 30 $ 5,654 

Variance 
Favorable 

(U nfavorable) 

S 

2,300 

3,350 

5,650 

5,650 

(7,250) 

$ (1,600) 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Tourism Development Authority 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures. and 
Changes in Fund Balances· Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3D, 2011 

2011 

Fina l 
Budget Actual 

Revenues 
Other taxes $ S 28.581 
Investment earnings 497 

Total revenues 10,100 29,078 

Expenditures: 
Operating expenses 16,818 

Total Expenditures 40,100 16,818 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (30,000) 12,260 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Operating Transfers from General Fund 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

Net change in fund balance (30,000) 12,260 

Fund Balance Appropriated 30,000 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 

(18,978) 

23,282 

42,260 

42,260 

(30,000) 

Net change in fund balance $ 12,260 $ ==,1",2,,,,2,,,60,= 

Fund Balance: 
Beginning orYear, July 1 75,870 

End or Year, June 30 $ =..;;88;;;'.;;13",0~ 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Dismal Swamp Visitor Center 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances · Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

2011 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Revenues 
Restricted Intergovernmental $ $ 150,000 
Sales 11,102 
Miscellaneous 375 

Total Revenue 173,559 161.477 

Expenditures 
Salaries and benefits 134,600 
Operating expenses 32,556 

Total Expenditures 213,559 167.156 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (40,000) (5,679) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) : 
Transfers from other funds 
Proceeds from Lease Purchase 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (40,000) (5,679) 

Fund Balance Appropriated 40,000 

Net change in fund balance $ (5,679) 

Fund Balance: 
Beginning of Year, July 1 71.084 

End of Year. June 30 $ 65,405 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable ) 

$ 

(12,082) 

46.403 

34,321 

34,321 

(40,000) 

$ (5,679) 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Fire District Funds • Courthouse a nd Shiloh 
Schedule of Revenues, Expe nditures, and 

Changes in Fund Bala nces · Budget and Actua l 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

2011 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Revenues: 
Ad valorem taxes $ S 71,972 
Other taxes 273,379 
Investment earnings 3,009 
Other fees 
Miscellaneous 589 

Total Revenues 355.810 348,949 

Expend itures: 
Public sa fety: 

Salaries and benefits 3.185 
Operating expenses 246.252 
Capital outlay 
Debt service: Principal and Interest 

Total Expenditures 440,810 249,437 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures [85,000) 99,512 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Proceeds from Installment Loan 
Transfer to General Fu nd 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

Revenues and Other Financing 
Sources Over (Under) Uses (85,000) 99,512 

Fund Balance Appropriated 85,000 

Net change in fu nd balance 99,512 

Fu nd Balance: 
Beginning of Year, July 1 355.3 14 

End of Year, June 30 $ 454,826 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavo rable) 

$ 

[6,861) 

191,373 

184,512 

184,512 

{S5,OOO} 

S __ 9;;;9;,;:, 5:.:;1 2~ 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Fire District Fund - South Mi1ls 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

2011 

Final 
Budget Actua l 

Revenues: 
Ad valorem taxes $ $ 44,029 
Other taxes 151,261 
Investment earnings 2,875 
Other grants 18,100 
Other fees 16,755 

Total Revenues 220,210 233,020 

Expenditures: 
Public safety: 

Salaries and benefits 4,665 
Operat ing expenses 1,045,557 
Capital outlay 
Debt service: Principal and Interest 

Total Expenditures 1,242,796 1,050,222 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,022,586) (817,202) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Proceeds from Installment Loan 725,000 725,000 
Transfer to General Fund 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 725,000 725,000 

Revenues and Other Financing 
Sources Over (Under) Uses (297,586) (92,202) 

Fund Balance Appropriated 297,586 

Net change in fund balance (92,202) 

Fund Balance: 
Beginning of Year, July 1 397,029 

End of Year, June 30 $ =;;;30;,;4,;;,8;;,;27= 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 

12,810 

192,574 

205,384 

205,384 

(297,586) 

$_d(,;,92;;,,2;;,0;,;;2,,) 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Drainage Fund - Joyce Creek 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

2011 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Revenues: 
Ad valorem taxes $ S 48,494 
Investment earnings 998 

Total Revenues 47,247 49,492 

Expenditures: 
Environmental Protection: 

Operating expenses 76,898 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 147,287 76,898 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (100,040) [27,406) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Proceeds from Installment Loan 
Transfer to General Fund 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

Revenues and Other Financing 
Sources Over (Under) Uses (100,040) (27,406) 

Fund Balance Appropriated 100,040 

Net change in fund balance $ (27,406) 

Fund Ba lance: 
Beginning of Year, July 1 172,221 

End of Year, June 30 $ 144,815 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 

2,245 

70,389 

72,634 

72,634 

(100,040) 

$_",[",2",7,4",0",6 .. ) 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Park Grant Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances· Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended 'une 30, 2011 

2011 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Revenues 
Restricted Intergovernmental $ S 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenue 

Expenditures 
Operating expenses 2,068 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 8,381 2,068 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (8,381) (2,068) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers from other funds 
Proceeds from Lease Purchase 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (8,38 1) (2,068) 

Fund Balance Appropriated 8,381 

Net change in fund balance $ (2,068) 

Fund Balance: 
Beginning of Year, July 1 8,381 

End of Year, Ju ne 30 $ 6,313 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 

6,313 

6,313 

6,313 

(8,381) 

$ (2,068) 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Community Park Trust Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances · Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

2011 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Revenues 
Restricted Intergovernmental S $ 
Other taxes 
Investment earnings 116 

Total Revenue 5.259 116 

Expenditures 
Operating expenses 30.238 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 57,475 30.238 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (52.216) (30.122) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers from other funds 
Proceeds from Lease Purchase 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (52.216) [30.122) 

Fund Balance Appropriated 52,216 

Net change in fund balance $ (30.122) 

Fund Balance: 
Beginning of Year, July 1 52,402 

End of Year, June 30 $ 22.280 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable ) 

S 

(5.143) 

27,237 

22,094 

22,094 

[52.216) 

$ (30.122) 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Parks and Recreation Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances· Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

2011 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Revenues 
Developer contributions $ $ 
Investment earnings 

Total Revenue 

Expenditures 
Operating expenses 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers from other funds 
Proceeds from Lease Purchase 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses 

Fund Balance Appropriated 

Net change in fund balance $ 

Fund Balance: 
Beginning of Year, July 1 

End of Year, June 30 $ 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable ) 

$ 

$ 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Revaluation Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

2011 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Revenues 
Ad Valorem taxes $ $ 74,984 
Investment earnings 2,097 

Total Revenue 75,500 77,081 

Expenditures 
Operating expenses 
Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 410,500 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (335,000) 77,081 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers from other funds 
Proceeds from Lease Purchase 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 

Revenues and Other Financing Sources 
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (335,000) 77,081 

Fund Balance Appropriated 335.000 

Net change in fund balance $ 77,081 

Fund Balance: 
Beginning of Year, July 1 335,880 

End of Year, June 30 $ 412.961 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 

1,581 

410,500 

412,081 

412,081 

(335,000) 

$ 77.081 



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of 
major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds 



camden County, North carolina 
Scattered Housing capital Projects Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual 

From Inception and For die Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Project Actual Variance 
Author - Prior Current Total to Favorable 
ization Years Year D,,, {Unfavorable~ 

Revenues: 
Restricted - infrastructure hook-up 08-C-1844 S 37,289 , S S $ 

Restricted - COSG grant 08-C-1817 400,000 5,007 
Restricted - SRSF grant 150,000 

Toul Revenues 587,289 1,004,931 5,007 1,009,938 422,649 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Economic and physical 
development: 587,289 1,007,063 5,007 1,012,070 (424,781) 

Revenues over expenditures (2,132) (2,132) (2.132) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Transfers in (out) 

Local contribution 2,132 2,132 (2.132) 
Total Other Financing 

Sources (Uses) 2,132 2,132 {2,132} 

Net change in fund balance S $ {2.132] $ 2,132 S S 



PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated 
in a manner simi lar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the 

governing body is that the costs of providing goods and services to the general public 
on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or 
where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of nct income is 
appropriate for accountability purposes. 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Enterprise Fund - Water District 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures 
Budget and Actual - (Non-GAAP) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Revenues: 
Operating Revenues 

Water sales 
Tap on Fees 
Miscellaneous 

Total water sales 

Waste water sales 
Miscellaneous 

Total waste water sales 

Total Operating Revenues 

Nonoperating Revenues 
Interest on Investments 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Reverse osmosis plant 

Salaries and employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Operating expenses 

Total 

Waste Water treatment: 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Operating expenses 
Total 

Water distribution: 
Salaries and employee benfits 
Repairs and maintenance 
Operating expenses 
Total 

Budgetary Appropriations: 
Capital Outlay 
Interest Paid 
Debt Principal 

Total 

Total Expenditures 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 

Final 
Budget 

S S 

1.042.300 

98,652 

1,140,952 

1,000 

1,141,952 

342,878 

249,335 

402,738 

335,825 

1,330,776 

(188,824) 

2011 

Actual 

922,301 
24.700 

119 
947,120 

88,403 

88,403 

1,035,523 

3,308 

1,038,831 

162,428 
17,100 

129,094 
308,622 

107,768 
41,453 
57,830 

207,051 

170,929 
11,212 

132,699 
314,840 

17,424 
123,433 
171,3 72 
312,229 

1,142,742 

(103,911) 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

$ 

(95,180) 

(10,249) 

(105,429) 

2,308 

(103,121) 

34,256 

42,284 

87,898 

23,596 

188,034 

84,913 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Enterprise Fund - Water District 

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures 
Budget and Actual - (Non-GAAP) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Final 
Budget 

Other Financing Sources and (Uses): 
Bond Proceeds 
Transfer to other funds 
Transfer from other funds 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Revenues and Other Sources Over 
(Under) Expenses and Other Uses 

Appropriated Fund Balance 

170,854 
170,854 

(17,970) 

17,970 

2011 

Actual 

170,854 
170,854 

66,943 

Revenues, Other Sources and Appropriated 
Fund Balance Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses $=-;..... $ _.;6~6<;;, 9;;;43~ 

Reconciliation from Budgetary Basis (Modified Accrual) to Full Accrual: 

Revenues, Other Sources and Appropriated 
Fund Balance Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses 

Reconciling items: 
Capital Outlay 
Principal Payments 
Increase in accrued vacation pay 
Other revenues from capital projects 
Interest form capital projects 
Increase in accrued OPEB 
Transfers to capital projects 
Expenditures in capital project 
Capital contributions - grant 
Depreciation 

Total reconciling items 

Change in net assets 

$ _--"66"",,,94,,3,-

17,424 
171,372 
(10,918) 
48,625 

103 
(10,886) 
369,950 

(274,368) 
938,795 

(409,910) 
840,187 

$ _~90::.:7"" 1,;:3 0::., 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

84,913 

(17,970) 

$ _.;6~6<;;, 9,;;4 3,= 



camden County, North carolina 
Water and Sewer District capital Projects Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances · Budget and Actual 

From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Project Actual Variance 
Author· Prior Current Total to Favorable 
ization Years Year Date {Unfavorable} 

Revenues: 
Restricted intergovernmental - Rural Center $ 3,400,000 $ 3,400,000 $ $ 3,400,000 $ 
Restricted intergovernmental· CWMTF Funds 3,564,011 3,096,007 3,096,007 (468,004) 
Restricted intergovernmental· COaG 600,000 600,000 600,000 
Other 75,905 144,791 17,148 161,939 86,034 
Intere<>t Income 3,366 103 3,469 3,469 

Total Revenues 7,639,916 7,244,164 17,251 7,261,415 (378,501) 

Expenditures: 
Sewer Construction: 

Legal fees 94,189 51.292 51,292 42,897 
Land 422,900 70,360 70,360 352,540 
Engineering 753,855 300,705 300,705 453,150 
Collection system 1,506,029 1.364,284 1.364,284 141,745 
Construction 6,818,822 5,608,830 1.163,023 6,771,853 46,969 
Spray fields 1,133,161 302,362 302,362 830,799 
Fund reselVes 360,943 73,448 73.448 287,495 

Total 11.089,899 7,771,281 1,163,023 8,934,304 2.155,595 

Revenues over expenditures (3,449,983) (527,117) (1,145,772) (1.672,889) 1.777,094 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Fund balance appropriated 1,132,861 1,132,861 
Revolving loan funds 1,367,122 145,839 1,1 55,021 1,300,860 66,262 
Transfers In 950,000 436.241 89,950 526,191 423,809 

Total Other Financing 

Sources (Uses) 3,449,983 582,080 1,244,971 1,827,051 1,622,932 

Revenues, Other Sources Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses $ $ 54,963 99,199 $ 154.162 $ 154,162 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Water and Sewer District Capital Projects Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances· Budget and Actual 

From Inception and Fortbe Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Project Actual Variance 
Author- Prior Current Total to Favorable 
ization Years Year Date (Unfavorable} 

Revenues; 
Restricted intergovernmental - Gold Leaf , $ 1.999.100 $ 122,129 $ 870,717 $ 992,846 $ (1 ,006.254) 
Restricted intergovernmental - RC Grant 160.000 68,078 68,078 (91.922) 
Other 31,477 31,477 31.477 
Interest Income 

Total Revenues 2.159.100 122.129 970,272 1.092.401 (l.066.699} 

Expenditures; 
Sewer improvements 1.890.000 41,284 1,546,094 1.587,378 302.622 
Water improvements 400,000 274,368 274,368 125.632 
Administration 34,100 34.100 
Fund reselVes 

Total 2,324,100 41,284 1,820,462 1.861,746 462,354 

Revenues over expenditures (165,000) 80,845 (850.190) (769.345) (604.345) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses); 
Fund balance appropriated 
Transfers In 165.000 165,000 165.000 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 165,000 165,000 165,000 

Revenues, Other Sources Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses $ $ 80,845 (685,190) $ (604,345) $ (604,345) 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Water and Sewer District Capital Projects Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances· Budget and Actual 

From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Project Actual Variance 
Author· Prior Current Total to Favorable 
ization Years Year Date (Unfavorable) 

Revenues: 
Restricted intergovernmental · CWMTF $ 864,100 $ $ $ $ (864, \ 00) 
Restricted intergovernmental· RC Grant 649,875 (649,875) 
Other 
Interest Income 

Total Revenues 1,513,975 (1,513,975) 

Expenditures: 
Sewer improvements 1.513,975 43,590 43,590 1,470,385 
Professional services 115,000 115,000 
Fund reserves 

Total 1,628,975 43,590 43,590 1,S85,385 

Revenues over expenditures (115,000) (43,590) (43,590) 71,410 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Fund balance appropriated 
Transfers In 115,000 115,000 115,000 

Total Other Financing 
Sources (Uses) 115,000 115,000 115,000 

Revenues, Other Sources Over (Under) 
Expenditures and Other Uses $ $ 71,410 $ 71,410 $ 71,410 



AGENCY FUNDS 

Agency funds are used to account (or assets the County holds on behalf of others. 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Agency Funds 

Combining Statement or Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3D, 2011 

Balance Not 
Iuly 1. 2010 Change lune 30, 2011 

Social Services Fund: 

Cash and Investments $ 8,956 $ 9,496 $ 18,452 

Liabilities $ 8,956 $ 9,496 $ 18.452 

Nancy M. and H. Clay Ferebee Fund 

Cash and Investments $ 1,53 1 $ , $ 1,533 

Liabillties $ 1.53 1 $ , $ 1.533 

School Tax Fund: 

cash and Investments $ 25,344 $ 6,778 $ 32,122 

liabilities $ 25,344 $ 6,778 $ 32,122 

Motor Vehicle Tax Fund: 

Cash and Investments $ 341 $ 123 $ 464 

Liabilities $ 341 $ 123 $ 464 

Total - All Agency Funds: 

Cash and Investments $ 36,172 $ 16,276 $ 52,448 

Liabilities S 36,172 $ 16,276 $ 52,448 



OTHER SCHEDULES 

This section includes additional information on property taxes. 

- Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 

- Analysis of Current Tax Levy 

- Ten Largest Taxpayers 



Fiscal Year 

2009-2010 $ 
2008-2009 
2007-2008 
2006-2007 
2005-2006 
2004-2005 
2003-2004 
2002-2003 
2001-2002 
2000-2001 
1999-2000 

TOTALS $ 

Camden County, North Carolina 
General Fund 

Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 
June 30, 2011 

Uncollected 
Balance Collections 

June 30, 2010 Additions And Credits 

$ 7,904,305 $ 6,551,749 
279,158 821,228 187,301 

89,531 487,963 40,875 
62,753 45,343 22,368 
46,452 17,708 11.748 
46,274 18,088 7,795 
25,976 6,332 
21,790 4,343 
17,145 3,444 
15,224 2,389 
11,682 11.682 

615,985 $ 9.294,635 $ 6,850,026 

Less: Allowance for uncollectable taxes 

Ad valorem taxes - General Fund 

Reconcilement with revenues' 

Ad valorem taxes - General Fund 
Ad valorem taxes - Revaluation Fund 

Reconciling items: 
Penalties and Interest 
Collection of Old Taxes 
Release 

Total Reconciling Items 

Total Collections and Credits 

Uncollected 
Balance 

June 30, 2011 

$ 1,352,555 
913,085 
536,619 

85,728 
52,412 
56,567 
19,644 
17,447 
13,701 
12,835 

$ 3,060,593 

(124.000) 

$ 2,936,593 

$ 6,816,476 
74,984 

(78,657) 
(1,411) 
38,634 

(41,434) 

$ 6,850,026 



Original levy: 
Property Taxes at Current Year Rate 

Total Original Levy 

Discoveries: 
Current year taxes 

Total Discoveries 

Abatements 
Current Year Taxes 

Total Abatements 

Total for Year 

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2011 

Current year's taxes collected 

Current levy collection percentage 

camden County, North Carolina 
Analysis of Current Tax Levy 

County - Wide Levy 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Coun!l: - wide 
Property Amount 
Val uation Rate of Levy 

$ 1.161.073.583 0.5900% $ 6,850,334 
1.161,073,583 6.850,334 

181,242.502 0.5900% 
181,242,502 

(2.603.390) 0.5900% (15.360) 
(2.603.390) (15.360) 

$ 1,339,712,695 7,904,305 

1.352,555 

$ 6,551,749 

82.89% 

Total Le~ 
Property 
excluding 
Registered Registered 

Motor Motor 
Vehicles Vehicles 

$ 6,391,212 $ 459,122 
6,391,212 459,122 

(5.976) (9.384) 
(5.976) (9.384) 

7,454.567 449.738 

1,292,732 59.823 

$ 6.161.835 $ 389,915 

82.66% 86.70% 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Analysis of Current Tax Levy 

County· wide Levy 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Secondary Market Disclosures' 

Assessed Valuation: 
Assessment Ratio l 

Real Property 
PersonalPrope~ 
Public Service Companies2 

Total Assessed Valuation 
Tax Rate per $100 
Levy (includes discoveries, releases and abatements)3 

100 % 
$ 1,033.999,031 

290,133,390 
15,580,274 

1,339,712,695 
0.59 

$ 7,904,305 



Taxpayer 

AAR Corporation, ETAL 
E & J Holdi ng LLC 
Blue Sky Development, LLC 
GSD Manufactonng, LLC 
Black Bear Disposal, LLC 
U.S. Training Center, Inc. 
Camden Square Associates 
Dominion North Carolina Power 
George Wood Farms, Inc 
Albemarle Elec Membership Corp 
Total 

Camden County, North Carolina 
Schedule ofTen Largest Taxpayers 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

2010 
Assessed 

Type of Business Valuation 

Real Estate $ 178,221,864 
Training Facility 46,560,678 
Apartment Complex 6,687,966 
Real Estate 6,379,322 
Real Estate 6,209,661 
Training Facility 6,000,508 
Real Estate 5,786,610 
Utility 5,216,780 
Farm 5,013,898 
Utility 4,917.627 

$ 270,994,915 

Percentage of 
Total Assessed 

Valuation 

13.30 % 
3.48 
0.50 
0.48 
0.46 
0.45 
0.43 
0.39 
0.37 
0.37 

20.23 % 



COMPLIANCE SECTION 



CERT I F I ED PUBLIC A C C O UNT AN T S 

4024 Oleander Drive Suite 2 
Wilmington, North Carolina 28403 

Telephone (910) 799-4872 Fax (910) 395-4872 

Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance and Other Matters 
Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance With Government 

Auditing Standards 

To the Board of County Commissioners 
Camden County, North Carolina 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental actlvlOes, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of Camden County, North Carolina, as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprises the Camden County's basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated October 13, 2011. Our report includes a reference to 
other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Other 
auditors audited the financial statements of the Camden County ABC Board, as described in our 
report on Camden County's financial statements. This report does not include the results of the 
other auditors' testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters 
that are reported separately by those auditors. The financial statements of the Camden County ABC 
Board were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Oyer Financial Report joe 

Management of the Camden County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the 
Camden County's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Camden County's internal control over 
financial reporting. Accordingly. we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's 
internal control over financial reporting. 



A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent 
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control. such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for limited purpose described 
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we 
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Camden County's financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under GovernmentAuditing Standards. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the entity, 
members of the County Commissioners, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through 
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., PA. 
October 13, 2011 



CE R TIF" I E D PU BLI C ACCOU NTANT S 
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 2 

Wilmington, North Carolina 28403 
Telephone (910) 799-4872 Fax (910) 395-4872 

Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable To Each Major Federal Program And Internal 
Control Over Compliance In Accordance With OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit 

Implementation Act 

To the Board of County Commissioners 
Camden County. North Carolina 

Compljance 
We have audited Camden County. North Carolina, compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the U S Office of Management and Budget COMB) Circular A-1 33 Compljance Supplement and the 
Audit Manyal for Goyernmental Auditors in North Carolina issued by the Local Government CommiSSion, that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of Camden County's major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2011. Camden County's major federal programs are identified in the summaI)' of auditor's results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of 
Camden County's management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Camden County's compliance 
based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goyernment Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States LOcal 
Goyernments and Non-profit Organjzations and the State Single Audit Implementation Act Those standards, 
OMB Circular A-133. and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examining. on a test basis, evidence about Camden County's compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal 
determination on the Camden County's compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion. Camden County complied. in all material respects. with the compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its to each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2011. 

Internal Control Oyer Compliance 
The management of Camden County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal 
programs. In planning and performing our audit. we considered Camden County's internal control over 
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in 
order to determine the auditing procedures fo r the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to 
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly. we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control over compliance. 



A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal cou rse of perfonning their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management, others within the entity, 
members of Board of County Commissioners, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through 
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. 
October 13, 2011 



C E RTIF I ED PUBLIC ACC O UNTANTS 
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 2 

Wilmington, North Carolina 28403 
Telephone (910) 799-4872 Fax (910) 395-4872 

Report On Compliance With Requirements Applicable To Each Major State Program And Internal 
Control Over Compliance In Accordance With Applicable Sections or OMB Circular A-133 and the State 

Single Audit Implementation Act 
To the Board of County Commissioners 
Camden County, North Carolina 

COIDpljsmce 
We have audited Camden County, North Carolina's, compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government 
Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of Camden County's major State programs for 
the year ended June 30, 2011. Camden County's major State programs are identified in the summary of 
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the 
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major State programs is the 
responsibility of Camden County's management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Camden 
County's compliance based on our audit 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, as 
described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Si ngle Audit 
Implementation Act. Those standards, applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit 
implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and 
material effect on a major State program occurred. An audit includes examining. on a test basis, evidence 
about Camden County's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Camden County's compliance with those 
requirements. 

In our opinion, Camden County complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its to each of its major State programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2011. 

Internal Control Oyer Compliance 
The management of Camden County is responsible fo r establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to State programs. In 
planning and performing our audit, we considered Camden County's internal control over compliance with the 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major State program in order to determine the 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on 
internal control over compliance in with applicable sections of OMS Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit 
Implementation Act, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal 
control over compliance. 



A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State 
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management. others within the entity, 
members of Board of County Commissioners, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through 
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A. 
October 13, 2011 



Camden County. North Carolina 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Section I. Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqual ified 

Intemal control over financial reporting: 

• Material weakness(es} identified? 

• Significant Oeficiency(s) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses 

Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major federal programs: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? 

• Significant Oeficiency(s) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses 

_yes Lno 

~no 

~no 

~none reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unqualified . 

Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported in accordance 
with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133 

Identification of major federal programs: 

CFOA Numbers Names of Federal Program or Cluster 

93.778 Medical Assistance Program 

~no 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B Programs 

Auditee qualified as low·risk aud itee? 

State Awards 

Internal control over major state programs: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? 

• Significant Deficiency(s) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses 

$ 300000 

..,Lno 

..,Lno 

..,Lnone reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major state programs: Unqualified, 

Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported in accordance 
with State Single Audit Implementation 
Act 

Identification of major state programs: 

Name of State Program or Cluster 

..Lno 

The Medical Assistance Program which is a State match on a federal program also meets the 
criteria for a major state program, but this program has been included in the list of major federal 
programs above. 



None reported. 

None reported. 

None reported. 

Camden County , North Carolina 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Section 11- Financial Statement Findings 

Section 111- Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

Section IV - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 



None reported . 

None reported. 

None reported. 

Camden County, North Carolina 
Corrective Action Plan 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 

Section 11- Financial Statement Findings 

Section 111 - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

Section IV - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 



Status; N/A 

Camden County, North Carolina 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Schedule of Expenditures or Federal and State Awards 

For the Year Ended June 30, 20 11 

Federal Fed. (Direct & 
Grantor /Pass·through CFDA Pass·through) State Locol 
Granmr/pmsram Title - Exnendinms ExpendjDII'fS lixpendimres 

Federal Awards : 

!! S Dept of Agri0 llmre 
EorxI and Nutri tion SeMce 

Passed·through the N.C. Dept. of Health and Human Sewices: 
Divis ion of Social Services: 
Administration: 

State Admjll;Slr .. livt: Milu;hing Gr .. nts for 
the Supplemental NuOition Assistance Program 10.561 79,251 65,277 

Total Food Stamp Ouster 79,251 65,277 

Passed·through the N.C. Dept. of Health and Human Sewices: 
Division of Public Health: 
Administration: 
Direct Benefit Payments: 
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for 
Women, lnfants, & Children 10.557 1,033 

Total U.s. Dept. of Agriculture 80,284 65,277 

If S pep! of lustice 
Burral! oflugjce A§sjgancr 

Passed·through N.C. Dept. of Crime Control and 
Public Safety: 
Byrne Formula Grant Program 16.738 50,935 

liS pept of Healtb & Human Senrjces 

MmiDig ratillD fQ[CbildlED aDd Eamilje~ 
Passed·through the N.C. Dept. of Health and Human Sel'ices: 

Division of Social Services: 
Family preservation 93.556 526 

T!:moorarv A~~i~lan~ fQr Needy Familie~ !:Iuster 
Work First Administration 93.558 32,969 24,350 
TANF Domestic Violence 93.558 6,711 
TANF TEA FosterCare 93.558 1,743 
Work First SelVice 93.558 66.608 69,945 
TANF Payment and Penalties 93.558 72.256 (18) 

Total T ANF Cluster 180,287 (18) 94,295 

Low· lncome Home Enelgy Assistance Block Giant: 
Administration 93.568 3,978 

Energy Assistance Payments- Dilect Benefit Payments 93.568 40,954 
Crisis Intetvention Program 93.568 32.935 
Child Welfare SelVices·State Giants 

• Permanency Planning· Families forKids 93.645 2.703 916 
Social Services Block Giant· Other Service and Training 93.667 29,976 3,227 10,995 
Family Violence Prevention 93.671 1,211 
Independent Living Grant 93.674 80 20 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and Slale Awards 

For the Year Ended June 30, 201 1 

Grantor/Pass-through 
Gra ntpr/pmgram Title 

FosterCare and Adoption Cluster.(Noce 2} 

Title IV-E FoscerCare-Administration 
FosterCare-Direct Benefit Payments 
Adoption Assistance-Direct Benefit Payments 

Total FosterCare and Adoption Cluster 

Division of Child Development: 
Subsidized Child Care (Note 2) 
Child 'jilt Dtyrl"nrnrg! f llD'! q'lNer 

Division of Social Setvices: 
Child Care Development Fund-Administ\ation 

Division of Child Development: 
Child Care and Development Block Gant 
Child Care and Development Fund - ManditOlY 
Child Care and Development Fund - Match 

Total Child Call' Development Fund Ouster 

Social Services Block Gr.lnt 
ARRA · Tempor.lry Assistance for Needy Families 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 
State Appropriations 
TANF -MOE 

Total Subsidized Ch!ld Cale Ouster 

Centers for Medicare and Medjoid Seooees 
Passed-through the N.C. Dept. of Health and Human SelVices: 

Division of MedIcal Assistance: 
Direct Benefit Payments: 
Medical Assistance Program 

Division of Social Setvices: 
Administration: 
Medical Assistance Program 

Resean;h Demonstration, Evaluations 
State Childnm's Insurance Program - N.C. Health Choice 

Total U.s. Dept. of Health and Human SeNices 

Dept pf HO'lsingand !!rhan DeYf'OpmentCHJQl 
Passed-through N.C. DepaJtment ofCommen:e: 

Small Cities Program 
Scattered Site Housing Grant 

Total Dept. of Housing and li"ban Development(HID) 

Total Feder.ll Awards 

Federal 
CFDA -93.658 
93.658 
93.659 

93.596 

93.575 
93.596 
93.596 

93.667 
93.558 
93.714 

93.778 

93,778 
93,779 
93.767 

14,229 

Fed. (Direct& 
Pass·through) 
E!'PfndiDires 

23.420 
3,051 

27,762 
54,233 

78,241 

70,717 
30,812 

4,568 
184,338 

3Z2 
22,517 
13,182 

220,359 

4,542,72 1 

157,111 

13,102 

5,280,182 

5,007 

5,001 

5,416,408 

Su" 
ExpendiDireS 

2,252 
637 

4,709 
7,598 

2,450 
2,450 

5,482 
11,845 
19,111 

1,869,135 

6,571 

378 

1,906,688 

1,906,688 

Loc,\ 
ExpendiDireS 

21,168 
637 

4,709 
26,514 

293 

150,456 

3,909 

287,378 

352,655 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 

For the Year Ended June 30, 20 11 

Grantor/Pass-through 
Grnnmr/Program Title 

State Awards: 

N C Dept qf Health and Human Senrjres 
Division of Social Services: 
State aid to county 
County Funded Programs/Non Allocating coru 
DCD Smart Start Program 
State/County Special Assistance forAdults 
SOIlt' FOStt'rCare Benents Program 
Passed through Albemarle Commission: 
Senior Center Grant 

Total N. C. Departmentof Health and Human SelVices 

N C Dept pf rUYfDile JuStjce and Pflimreo<y p r ventjpn 

Juvenile Crime Prevention 
Total Office ofGovemor 

N C Dept ofT Jj!nSPQlptjon 

Rural Operating Assistance Program (ROAP) 
Elderly and Disabled Ttansportation Assistance 
Program (E&DTAP) 
ROAP Work First Transitional - Employment 

Transportation Assistance Program 
ROAP Rural Gene13.1 Public Program 
Dismal Swamp Welcome/VlsitorCenter 

Total N. C. Dept OfTransportation 

N C pep! Of public InSmlrtjon 

Public School Building Capital Fund 

N C pepa]Imem qf Environment and NaDlJj!I ReSQIrrreS 
White Goods Grant 
Public Beach and Watetront Access Gran t 
Soil and Water Conservation Funds 
Pest Management 
Solid Waste Disposal 
Scrap Tire Grant 

Total N.C. Dt!pt. EHNR 

North Carolina BuytJ llconomic Develonment Center 

Clean Water Bond Supplemental Grants Program 

N C Pfpt ofIvsuJj!nce 

5HIIP Gant 
South Mills Fire Grant 

Total N.C. Dt!pt. of Insurance 

Total 5tate Awan:ls 

Total Federal and State Awards 

Federal 
CFDA 

HlImI><r 

$ 

Fed. (Direct & 
Pass-through) 
Expendinul'S 

5,416,408 $ 

Expenditures 

177 

859 
63.89B 

7.731 

11,987 

84.652 

51,907 
51,907 

57,411 

7,688 
55,899 

150,000 
270,998 

11,000 

3,124 
135.000 

3,960 
2,816 
7,940 
1,101 

153,941 

158,028 

2,811 
1RI 00 
20,911 

75 1,437 

2,658,125 $ 

Lo,,1 
Emenditrrres 

52,719 

66,659 
45,959 

165,337 

165,337 

517,992 



Camden County, North Carolina 
Schedule ofExpcnditurcs of Fed<!l1ll and State Awards 

For Ihe Year Ended June 30, 20 II 

Fed. (Direct & 
Pass-through) Loa' Grantor/Pass-through 

GraotQclpmggoo Title 

Federal 
CFDA 
.-., ExPfndjDJres GxpendjDu't$ fixpendiDJl'l's 

Notes to the Schedule of Expendinnes of Federal and State Financial Awads: 

1. BasisofPresentatjpo 
The accompanying schedule 0( expenditu~s offeder.U and State awaros indudes the fedelal and State gran! activity of Camden 
County and is pre$lmttd on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The inromation in this schedule is ptesented in accordance 
wit.h lht! rt!<{uir~enl$ arOMS Clmllar A-133, Audits ofSmres loral r.qytrnmenrs and Non_Pronf Qrganlntigns and the 

Stolte Single Audit Implemenation Act. TheJ:!fore some, amounts p!escnted in this schedule maydifferfrom amounts presented in, 
or used in the preparation of the basic financial statementS. Benefit p,ayments ae paid directly to recipientS and are not included 
induded in the county's basic financiill statements.Howeverdue to the county's involvement in detemining eligibility, they are 
considered federal awards to the county aod are included on this schedule. 

2 The following are clustered by the NC Oepartmentof Health and Human Services and are treated separately rorstate audit requirement 
pu~s: Subsidi:ed Child CalC, TANF, and FosterCare and Adoption. 



Page I of7 

2011 Turnaround Document 

Instructions: Complete this Turnaround Document in its entirety to include each specified program. 
This should include even those specified programs that were not audited. Submit this 
form along with all required information to the Local Government Commission. 

SPECIFIED PROGRAMS 

Medical Assistance Program (Medicaid) 93.778 

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TAN F) 93.558 

State Children 's Insurance Program (CHIP) 93.767 

Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants , and Children (WIC) 10.557 

low-Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568 

Adoption Assistance 93.659 

AUDITOR STATEMENT 

Entity Audited: CAMDEN COUNTY 

Year Ended: JUNE 30, 2011 

Audit Organization: 

Signature of Audit The information included on this fonn is based on information included in our 
Organization: workpapers and is limited to that prescribed by the Office of the State Auditor. 

We have not performed any auditing procedures since the date of the auditor'S 
report and have not performed any additional auditing procedures in connection 
with the completion of this form. 

Signed: 4/~ 
Title: r:.,(Dc 

April 20 11 



Turnaround Document Page 2 of 7 

Entity Audited: CAMDEN COUNTY 

Year Ended: JUNE 30, 2011 

Audit Organization: THOMPSON PRICE SCOTT ADAMS & CO PA 

A. Medical Assistance Program (93.778) Required Responses 

1. Ind icate the program type at th is entity in accordance with section .520 of A 181 B 0 
OMS Circular A-1~~? 

2. Was a risk assessment performed on this program in accordance with Yes 181 No 0 
sections .520 and .525 of OMS Circular A-1 33? 

W A. Was this program's risk assessed as . .. low Risk Not low Risk 
yes, 0 181 

3. Was this program aud ited as a major program? Yes 0 No 181 

If A Was it selected as a major program as a result of a risk Yes 0 No 181 
yes, assessment performed in accordance with section .520 of OMB 

Circu lar A-133 ... 

B. andlor because it was a major program selected by the N.C. Yes 0 No 181 
State Auditor's Office ... 

4. If the program was aud ited, were there any aud it findings related to eligibility Yes 0 No 181 
disclosed because of the audit? 

If A Are copies of the audit findings submitted with this document? Yes 0 No 0 
yes, (Note: separate copies of only those audit find ings related to 

eligibility are required to be attached to th is document. ) 

5. If the program was audited, provide the following regarding your sample and Sample size 60 
results of testing the elig ibiliri r~uirements : 

Number of 0 
errors 

Questioned $ 0.00 
Costs 

Apri12011 



Turnaround Document Page 3 of 7 

Entity Audited : CAMDEN COUNTY 

Year Ended: JUNE 30. 2011 

Audit Organization: THOMPSON PRICE SCOTT ADAMS & CO PA 

B. Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) (93.558) Required Responses 

1. Indicate the program type at this entity in accordance with section ,520 of A 0 B t8l 
OMB Circular A-133? 

2. Was a risk assessment performed on this program in accordance with Yes 0 No t8l 
sections .520 and .525 of OMB Circular A-133? 

If A. Was this program's risk assessed as . .. Low Risk Not Low Risk 
yes, 0 0 

3. Was this program audited as a major program? Yes 0 No t8l 

If A. Was it selected as a major program as a resu lt of a risk Yes 0 No 0 
yes, assessment performed in accordance with section .520 of OMB 

Circular A-133 ... 

B. and/or because it was a major program selected by the N.C. Yes 0 No 0 
State Auditor's Office .. 

4. If the program was audited, were there any audit findings related to eligib ility Yes 0 No 0 
disclosed because of the audit? 

If A. Are copies of the aud it findings submitted w ith this document? Yes 0 No 0 
yes, (Note: separate copies of only those audit findings related to 

eligibility are required to be attached to this document) 

5. If the program was audited, provide the following regarding your sample and Sample size 
results of testing the eligibiliri reguirements: 

Number of 
errors 

Questioned $ 
Costs 

April 2011 



Turnaround Document Page 40f7 

Entity Audited: CAMDEN COUNTY 

Year Ended: JUNE 30, 2011 

Audit Organization: THOMPSON PRICE SCOTT ADAMS & CO PA 

C. State Children's Insurance Program (93.767) Required Responses 

1. Indicate the program type at this entity in accordance with section .520 of A D B IZl 
OMS Circu lar A-133? 

2. Was a risk assessment performed on this program in accordance with Yes D No IZl 
sections .520 and .525 of OMS Circular A-133? 

K A Was this program's risk assessed as ... Low Risk Not Low Risk 
yes, D D 

3. Was this program audited as a major program? Yes D No IZl 

K A Was it selected as a major program as a result of a risk Yes D No D 
yes, assessment performed in accordance with section .520 of OMS 

Circu lar A-133 ... 

B. and/or because it was a major program selected by the N.C. Yes D No D 
State Auditor's Office ... 

4 . If the program was audited, were there any audit findings related to eligibility Yes D No D 
disclosed because of the audit? 

K A. Are copies of the audit findings submitted with this document? Yes D No D 
yes, (Note: separate copies of only those audit findings related to 

eligibi lity are required to be attached to this document.) 

5. If the program was audited, provide the following regarding your sample and Sample size 
resu lts of testing the eligibility r§gu irements: 

Number of 
errors 

Questioned $ 
Costs 

April 20 11 



Turnaround Document Page 50f7 

Entity Audited: CAMDEN COUNTY 

Year Ended: JUNE 30, 2011 

Audit Organization: THOMPSON PRICE SCOTT ADAMS & CO PA 

D. Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Required Responses 
Children (WIC) (10.557) 

1. Indicate the program type at this entity in accordance with section .520 of A 0 B IZJ 
OMS Circular A-133? 

2. Was a risk assessment performed on this program in accordance with Ves 0 No IZJ 
sections .520 and .525 of OMS Circu lar A-133? 

If A. Was this program's risk assessed as ... Low Risk Not Low Risk 
yes, 0 0 

3. Was this program audited as a major program? Ves 0 No IZJ 

If A. Was it selected as a major program as a result of a risk Ves 0 No 0 
yes , assessment performed in accordance with section .520 of OMS 

Circular A-1 33 ... 

B. and/or because it was a major program selected by the N.C. Ves 0 No 0 
State Auditor's Office ... 

4. If the program was aud ited, were there any audit findings related to eligibility Ves 0 No 0 
disclosed because of the audit? 

If A. Are copies of the aud it findings submitted with this document? Ves 0 No 0 
yes, (Note: separate copies of only those audit find ings related to 

eligibility are required to be attached to this document.) 

5. If the program was audited, provide the following regarding your sample and Sample size 
results of testing the elig ibili!y reguirements: 

Number of 
errors 

Questioned $ 
Costs 

April 2011 



Turnaround Document Page 60f7 

Entity Audited: CAMDEN COUNTY 

Year Ended: JUNE 30, 2011 

Aud it Organization: THOMPSON PRICE SCOTT ADAMS & CO PA 

E. Low-Income Home Energy Assistance (93.568) Required Responses 

1. Indicate the program type at this entity in accordance with section .520 of A 0 B I1?J 
OMS Circular A-1~~? 

2. Was a risk assessment performed on this program in accordance with Yes 0 No I1?J 
sections .520 and .525 of OMS Circular A-133? 

H A. Was th is program's risk assessed as . Low Risk Not Low Risk 
yes. 0 0 

3. Was this program audited as a major program? Yes 0 No I1?J 

H A. Was it selected as a major program as a result of a risk Yes 0 No 0 
yes, assessment performed in accordance with section . 520 of OMS 

Circular A-133 ... 

B. andlor because it was a major program selected by the N.C. Yes 0 No 0 
State Auditor's Office ... 

4. If the program was aud ited, were there any audit findings related to eligibility Yes 0 No 0 
disclosed because of the audit? 

If A. Are copies of the aud it findings submitted with this document? Yes 0 No 0 
yes, (Note: separate copies of only those audit findings related to 

eligibility are required to be attached to this document.) 

5. If the program was audited, provide the following regarding your sample and Sample size 
results of testing the eligibiliti reguirements : 

Number of 
errors 

Questioned $ 
Costs 

April2011 



Turnaround Document Page 7 of 7 

Entity Aud ited: CAMDEN COUNTY 

Year Ended: JUNE 30, 2011 

Audit Organization: THOMPSON PRICE SCOT ADAMS & CO PA 

F. Adoption Assistance (93.659) Required Responses 

1. Indicate the program type at th is entity in accordance with section .520 of A D B 181 
OMB Circular A·1~~? 

2. Was a risk assessment periormed on this program in accordance with Yes D No 181 
sections .520 and .525 of OMB Circular A·133? 

W A. Was th is program's risk assessed as ... Low Risk Not Low Risk 
yes. D D 

3. Was this program audited as a major program? Yes D No 181 

II A. Was it selected as a major program as a result of a risk Yes D No D 
yes, assessment periormed in accordance with section .520 of OMB 

Circular A·133 ... 

B. and/or because it was a major program selected by the N.C. Yes D No D 
State Auditor's Office ... 

4 . If the program was audited , were there any audit findings related to eligibility Yes D No D 
disclosed because of the audit? 

W A. Are copies of the audit findings submitted with this document? Yes D No D 
yes, (Note: separate copies of only those audit find ings related to 

eligibility are required to be attached to this document.) 

5. If the program was audited, provide the following regarding your sample and Sample size 
results of testing the eligibili ty: r~uirements: 

Number of 
errors 

Questioned S 
Costs 

April 2011 



CERTIF'IED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

4024 Oleander Drive Suite 2 
Wilmington, North Carolina 28403 

Telephone (910) 799-4872 Fax (910) 395·4872 

October 13, 2011 
The Honorable Beth A. Wood, CPA, State Auditor 
Office of the State Auditor 
2 S. Salisbury Street 
20601 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, North Carolina 27699·0601 

Dear Ms. Wood: 

We have audited those federal programs as checked off on the list that follows of 
Camden County in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 for the year ended June 30, 
2011: 

A I2SI Medical Assistance Program 

B 0 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 

C 0 State Children's Insurance Program 

D 0 Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, 
and Children 

E 0 Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 

F 0 Adoption Assistance 

We make the following representations to you regarding our audit: 

1. We are independent with respect to Camden County and to the State of North 
Carolina under the requirements of the AICPA and the GAO Government Auditing 
Standards. 

2. We are aware that the results of our audit related to eligibility at Camden County wi ll 
be included in the Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable 10 Each 

April 2011 



Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB 
Circular A-i33 of the State of North Carolina and that you intend to place reliance 
on our audit ofthe designated programs noted above. 

3. We are familiar with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America and with the generally accepted auditing standards promulgated by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and with the GAO Government 
Auditing Standards and will report and conduct our audit in accordance therewith. 

4. We are familiar with the auditing and reporting requirements of Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits o/States, Local Governments, and 
Non-Profit Organizations, and will report and conduct our audit in accordance 
therewith. 

Sincerely, 

April 2011 



.... Su~ S<I-.Io 

~------------------------------------~ 

Calculation of Net Assets-Governmental Activities 
Fund balance must be reclassified to a Net Assets presentillion for the oovenvnen~-wlda statem8llts. ThIs woo<sheeI will assiSl you in -.e calculation of 
tha numbers !hat oroSI be enIered manually into WOI'I<IIlNt l. 'o'tbkshHt L creales the enlry II\II~ posts to the ~ worksheet 10 ret:laQily net 
asSfllIl was no! automatically (/611- in onIer to evoi<I tlrt:uIlw logic. This step will be one of the lest perfonned in ftnalizing data in -.e converaion --The infoomalion COiec:ted in IIis wtnsheet end preMIl\e(I in !he gOld colored c:eus .... provide the spec:ifi(: information thai must be Inp\l\ Into 'o'tbksheet 
l. Sedioo J. Entering these ..... n~ Into woOtshee~ L should CCItIlllete the conv«Sion process. 

•. L-______________________ cR~.~.~trie'.Wd .. "A"." •••• mC-"O~ •• b""F"'o.m""F'u.n"dCS.u.u .. mo .. nm"' ______________________ -' 
Restrict<!d assets are calculated In toUIIlorthe oovemment-wide a<;Iivities. Ho~_. the IUlId statements are needed to begin this calculation. In the 
yellow cells below. enter tha indiC8tt!d IOtaIs by I'IIndion (which may require some aggregalion oIfundl). Fore ......... le. the func1ional e~penditure for 
the EO" Special Re .......... e Fund is public safety. so the r&Sb'\c:Ied assets for thai f..-.d are c;alculaled entirely on lIlal Hne. The traosporUllion funcIIon Is 
Powell Bill fUnds that are a pertol!he Genenol Fund. 
Resll'ided assets .... II'lOse rellritled by an external source .... ch asa grentor agency or. creditor. orraSlricted by board .::lion in conjundion with 
S8P8/1Ita legislation ..... ch as the lew;ng olen occupancy tax. Board action by itsert i. not enough 10 Il'stricl an a$$&'l. Once the deteminatioo is made 
thAt A "'~lricled A .• ,..,t "~;SlS. Ih"" Ih" IOtaI .... ",.nt to be .. .meted mufl be ealeut_ to _de...,. rece;VIlbles of that a .. al 1101. any p_bkll or 
uneemed income that relata lathat anet. All numbers are entered as posiWe numbe ... 

• • - - -Unexpenckd Unnmed RHlricied 
Gov.."ma ntlll Activities BII FUnction Cuh Recelvlble. PIY.bIas ,~ .-
Gen_ govemmeol 2.788.668 2.788.668 
Public safety 736.015 736,015 
Tran&pOotation ,.'" 5.654 
EeonorrOc end physical development 1.907.455 '.007.455 
Environmental p~ 
Huma'l services 

Cultural and recreation 
Other prog ..... I 
Other program 2 

""" ""'"' C'''\8I outlAY 

, .. 5436.692 5.436.692 

B. L-________________ -E~~~~~~~~ ________________ ~ 

Capltal a .. etI. all govemmental activities 

""" Other non-depreeiabie as!>ets 
Buildings 
Impl'OYement$ other than buildings 
Equipment 
Vehid&$ and other motorized equipm&nt 
Infrastructure 
Asset class , 
Asset class 2 
Construction in progI"6SS 

Net Capital Assets 

Capital debt calculatlon 
Total debt.1ifQ5S H!I.912.<195 

Less: 
Debt fof assets 10 wtlich the COunty does 
not hold title 16.137.691 
Other debt not i$S1.Ied fo( capital 
Une>Cpeoded proceeds 
Unamortized assets related to capital debt 

Add: 
Unamortized liabilities related to capital 

"'" Total capital debt 

Capital assets net of "'"-ted debt 

2.n4,804 

8.-429,168 

Enter the all'lOllflt of debt related 10 capital 
assels 
Enter as a posmve numtler 



Calculation of Net Assets--Governmental Activities 

C. '-__________________________________ ~c"."',"""' .... o"""o.fCN"fi"" .. "" ..... '_ __________________________________ ~ 

Total Net Assets 

Less Restrk:ted Net Assets 

Less Capital Assets Net of Related Debt 
Unrestricted Net Assets 

6,905,666 from the Conversion worksheet 

5,436,692 from Sec~on A above 

8429.186 from Sec~on B above 

(6,960,194) 


